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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Daar Shareholders,

In recant yaars, he filing indusiry has conlinued o evolve and tranglorm, which has resulled in an inevitable
congolidation among major industry players. Coupled with the global economic turbulenca, this has presented both
challenges and opporiunities 1o the Graup,

Againgt thasa indusiry challenges, the Group continued o deliver steflar resulls, espagially an its core busingss
Excluding the share of profit from the assocaie, (he pre tax profit far the Group hes Improved by 8.4% on the back
of a higher turnover, During the year, we have continued (o review and reshape our business model to keap abreast
with the rapldly changing market tfrends and customers’ requirements, Major market segments thal are essentlal fo
the Group's sustainable future growth have bean idantified and strategic business plans have been formulated fo
further strenglhen our presence in lhese crucial markel sagmenis. In addilion, we have also laken on new producl
ranges and expanded our product portfolios. Cur responsiveness in embracing changes in the industry is imparative
for us 1o reach where we are (oday, without which we would notl be able 19 sustain the confinuous growlh we
are enjoying currently.

As putlined In my statement to you last year, we have acquired an addifional manufecturing faciity n the United
Kingdom in April 201 2. With the increased capacity, we would be abla fo continee to grow our business in the United
Kingdom as well as the neighbouring countfles In Europs. The diveraity (n the produst rangse manufactured by aur
various facilities in Europe will provide us with an excallant platform that is capable of dalivering sustainabla long
term growih, In addition, the acguisition of the paper mill lasl year has served us well to become a Tully inlegraled
manufecturer of filing products, especially on paper and paperboard filing ltems.

The combination of decades of product knowledge, our core compelencies in manufaciuring and & heallhy balance
sheet posilion, has given us greal conflidence to withstand the volatile market. | would like o atlribute the continuous
growth of our business to our team of commitled employees, who heve never ceased 1o demonsirate thaeir
anthusiasms, professionalisms and dadications in their work, | would like fo express my haartfelt appraciation to all
of them who have bean lirelessly conlribulad to the success al Lhe Group,

I line: with our progressive dividend policy, @ total of BM 8.3 milion in interim dividend (B% single-fier) was paid oul
fo our shareholders. Subject to the shereholders’ approval, a further 12.5% in final dividend has been proposed by
the Board, which will rasull in a full year dividend of 20 5%,

In closing, | am truly energized by all the posilive developmenis driven by the Group in recont years and | am

canfident of {5 continuous progress as It embarks on ite joumey to become a world class manulasturer and
suppliar of filing producis

Mr Lim Soon Huat
Chairman of the Group



GROUP STRUCTURE

Subsidsaries & & OF Shomholdings

ASIA FILE CORPORATION BHD (31a192-F}

«ssss{  ASIA FILE PRODUCTS SDN. BHD. (100%) ==
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PREMIER STATIONERY PTE. LTD (100%) |

PREMIER STATIONERY LIMITED (75%)

AFP COMPOSITE SDN. BHD. (100%)

LIM & KHOO SDN. BHD. (100%})
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

1. Lim Socon Huat, age 56, is a Malaysian citizen and the Man-
Indepandent Executive Chalirman. He was appointed to the Board on 3
January 1996 and was subsaguanily appointad as Chairman of the Board
an 16 duly 2001,

He graduated from Unlversity of Melbourne with & Master Degres In
Enginaaring. He has vast working expariances of more than thirly (30) years
in both publle and private sectors. Priar to his involveman! In business, he
was involvad in civil engineering projecis undertaken by the Drainage and
Irrigation Department. In 1986, he [oined the fillng &nd stationery indesiry and
sinca than ha has baan plaving a prominent rola in all facets of the company
managemant. He iz the Dapuly Chairman of Penang Papar & Stationary
Association and also the Depuly President of The Faderation of Slationers
and Boeoksellers Association of Malaysia. He also holds directorahip In
various subsidiaries of Asia File Corporation Bhd Group.

As at 29 July 2013, he is the registered holder of 329,151 shares In Asia
Flle Corporation Bhd and (s deamed Intersstad over 52 336 837 shares in
Asia File Corporation Bhd registered under Prastige Elegancae (M) Sdn
Bhd, He also halds 50.01% of the total sharahaldlng In Prestige Elegance
(M) Sdn Bhd, Dwring tha financial year ended 31 March 2013, he attendad
fiwe |5} Board of Directora” meetings.

2. Lim Soon Wah, age 45, is a Malaysian citizen and a Non-Independont
Execulive Director. He was appointed fo the Board on 3 January 1956

Ha obtained a Bachalor ol Sconce Degrea from Usiversily of Manitoba,
Canada in 1888, Sinca than ha has bean activaly invalved in he prodection
cparation of the Company. He also holds directorships in several privale
firmited companiog

As at 29 July 2013, ha is the registerad holder of 2,489 825 sharas in
Agia File Corporation Bhd, Mo algo holds 10.75% of the lotal shareholding
in Praslige Elagance (M} Sdn Bhd, a substantial sharehaldar of Asia
File Corparation Bhd, During tha financial year ended 31 March 2013,
he allended five (B) Board of Directors’ maalings

3. Hg Chin Nam; age 43, is a Malaysian citizen. He was appointed to
the Board on 19 June 2012 as an Independent Mon-Executive Director. He
is the Chairman of the Audil Committes: and Momination Commities.

Mr Mg is @ member of the Charlgred Instilute of Maragemen! Accounlanis.
He has more than 18 years of experience in the fields of accounding, audiling,
taxation and corporate finance, He starls his caress in 1892 in manufacluring
environmenl. He joined an international auddl Trm as an awdil senior in 1987
after oblaining his professional qualification from Charfered Institule of
Management Accountant (CIMA). He lelt the audit firm as assistanl
manager to join a listed company as finance manager. In 2007, ke left 1o
assume role as head of Managemaent Information System (MIS), Human
Resource and Finance in anothar listed company. Mr Ng presently sits on
the Board of SMPC Corporalion Bhd, Luster Industries Bhd and Miche
Capital Emas Holdings Berhad.

Dring the nancial year ended 31 March 2013, he atlended Towr (2} Board of
Direclors” meelings

06 asia rita corparavion v |



PROFILE OF DIR

CTORS (cont 4y

4, Lam Voon Kean, age 81, is a Malaysian citizen. She was appointed
io ktha Board on 11 June 2012 as a Mon-Independent Non-Executive Director
She is a member of the Audit Committes and Nomination Committes,

Ms Lam has over 30 years of axperience in the fields of accounting,
audifing, corporate secrefarial and advisory. She began her carear with
KPMG in 1974 under arlicleship and was subsequanily promofed as
sanior audit managar. She left KPMG in 1994 to join M & C Services
Sdn Bhd [now known as Boardroom Corporaie Services (Penang) Sdn
Bhd after restructuring] as the saenior manager and was promoted
to managing director until her ratiremant In 2011, Ms Lam prasenily sits
on the Board of Globatronics Technology Bhd,

During the financial year endad 3t March 2013, she atiendad four [2)
Board of Directors” meelings.

3. Hurjannah Bintl All, age 54, I5 8 Malaysian citizen. Sha was
appointed to the Board on 15 April 1999 as an Independent Maon-
Exacutive Director. She I8 @ member of the Audit Commities and
Momination Committas.

With an accounting background, Murjanmah hes more than fifteen
{15} years' experience in finance and corporate managemsnt. She
prasently sits on the Board of Public Packages Ho'dings Bhd and saveral
other private limited companies. During the financial year endad 31

March 2013, she attanded five (5] Board of Directore' meatings.

6. Lim Soon Hee, age 50, iz a Malaysian cilizen and a Mon-
independent Mon-Execulive Altarnate Dlrector. O 06 June 2013, he ceased
to ba allernale director lo Mr Mg Chin Nam and was appointad as
alternale direclor fo Mr Lim Soon Wah.

He hag mofa than tan {10) years” expesiences in sales and marketing and
was appolnted as direclor for ane of the subsidiary companies n 15885
He also holds direclarships in various privala limiled companies.

Az al 29 July 2013, he holds B T4% of the lotal shareholding in
Preatige Elegance (M) Bdn Bhd, a8 subslanlial shareholder of Asgia
Fila Corparation Bhda.

 Hoies:

(1] Dalin Kkao Saw Sim, a substandial shareholder, k= tha molther ol dirsctors, Mr L Soon Huad and 8r Lim Seon Wah, and
altornate dirpcior, Mr Lim Span Hoo, Oher than as disciasad in the Prefile of Qiractors, nong of the dirociors has any
family refalionship with any cther direciosdmajor sharehoidess of the Company.

1] Dibar {han as disclosed in the Direclomns” Report and MNoles to the Firancial Stalamsands, theds & no ofher canflicl of mlaresd
thal tha dissclors kave with 1he Company.

=) Excapt for Mg Chin Mam, Nurjannah bingi &1 ang Lam Vean Eean which were disclosed in iha Profile of Direclors, nona of
the olhar dirmciors hald sy deaciarship in amy ofhar public lisied companies.

] Iin thett paad tap (10} years, noae of 1he direciors was conviclaed of ahy allence alher than lraflic olfences

Amip Tilm Corporatlan Ih'ﬂn




FIVE - YEAR FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
OF THE GROUP

TURNOVER

<

Turnover (RM)

20932 M
267.45 M
24711 M

276.32M

32338 M

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

OBasie rins Corporstlan Bhd




FIVE - YEAR FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
OF THE GROUP (cont'd)

DIVIDENDS PER ORDINARY SHARE - NET (CENTS)

r Dividends per N
ordinary
share net (Cents)

18.75
21.00
21.60

21.50

20.50

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS)

-\\".
Basic Earni
Pl;“é:mrl:!ém]

67.15
20.46
43.83
42.18
37.05

Aske Flls Corporscion @h I:IU'B




STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors of Asia File Corporation Bhd acknowledges the importance of
good corporate governance in protecting and enhancing the interest of shareholders.
As such the Board i3 commutted towards adherence to the principles,
recommendations and best practices set out in the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance (MCCG) 2012 issued by the Securities Commission Malaysia,

The Board is pleased to provide the following statements on the manner in which the
principles and best practises of the MCCG 2012 have been applied across the Group.,

A. Board of Directors
Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible towards the strategic planning, overseeing the resources
and the overall operation of the Group.,

The principal roles and responsibilities of the Board in enhancing Board's
effectiveness in pursuit of corporate objectives encompass the following specific
areas:-

= review and adopt strategic plan;

= oversee the conduct of the Group’s businesses;

= identify principal risk arcas and cnsuring that appropnate risk management
systemn is in place to address the above nisks;

#  succession planning for senior management staff;

= developing and implementing investor relations program and shareholders
communication policy; and

= review the adequacy and integrity of the intemal control and management
information system.

Board Balance and Independence

There are presently six (6) members on the Board comprising mainly of two (2)
Executive Directors, two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors, one (1) Non-
independent Non-Executive Director and one {1} Non-independent Non-Executive
Alternate Director, The two Executive Directors have been actively involved in
the industry for many vears, bringing with them a wealth of valuable experiences
in ensuring the success of the Group. The Non-Executive Directors, with their
diversified backgrounds and specialization belp to steer the Group in the right
direction in fulfilling its role to its shareholders. A brief profile of each individual
director is presented in the Profile of Directors section of this Annual Report. The
assessment of independence of the Independent Idirectors is carmied out upon
appointment, annually and when any new interest or relationship develops.

The Managing Director, Mr Lim Soon Huat assumed the role of Chairman upon

the demise of the late Dato’ Lim Eng Siang on 27 June 2001. This is in
recognition of his invaluable contribution towards the continued success of the

10 avia Fit corperasion 35



STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY jcontn)

Group’s performance. In view of the decision making procedure currently
practised by the Group m which the majority views of the Board will be
considered and the noticeable presence of the independent directors on the Board,
the Board is confident that the dual roles held will not put the system of check and
balance in jeopardy.

The Board took note of the recommendation of the Code on the tenure of an
Independent Director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine (9) years, The
Board is making a recommendation to shareholders that Puan Nurjannah Binti Ali,
who has served on the Board for more than nine years, remains as Independent
Non-Executive Director.

The Board is of the view that Puan Murjannah Bint1 Ali has perfformed her dutics
diligently and provided independent views in participating in deliberations and
decision making of the Board and Board Committees. The length of her service on
the Board does not in any way interfere with her exercise of independent
judgement and ability to act in the best interest of the Group.

Board Meetings

The Beard meets at least four (4) times a year and with additional meetings
convened as the need arises, to inmter-alia approve the Quarterly Reports, the
Annual Report and to review the performance of the Company and its operating
subsidiaries. The Board receives relevant documents on matters requinng its
consideration prior to each meeting. A total of five (3) Board meetings were held
during the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

The attendance mecord of individual Director during the financial wear are

tabulated helow:-
Mame of Directors Attendance
Lim Soon Huat 5/'5
Lim Soon "ﬂn_’ah | 5:"5
Ng Chin Nam (appointed on 11/06/2012) | 44
Lam Voon Kean (appointed on 11/06/2012) 4/4
Nu:jannah Bint Al 55
Board Committees

To ensure the effective discharge of its fiduciary duhies and to enhance business
and operational efficiency, the Board delegates specific responsibilities to the
Audit Committes and Momination Commitiee. All commitiees have wrillen berms
of reference. The functions and terms of reference of Board Committees are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that they remain relevant. The Board also
reviews the minutes of the Board Committees’ meetings presented at Board
meetings,

The Audit Committee consists mainly of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The composition, terms of reference and a summary of the activities of the Audit
Committee are set out on pages 18 to 21 of this Annual Report.

N, <+ e Corperavion e 11




STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (conro)

The Nomination Committec comprises exclusively of Non-Exccutive Directors,
the majonty of whom are independent Directors. The terms of reference, role and
functions of the Nomination Commitiee are sel oul on pages 22to 23 ol this
Annual Report.

Supply of Information

Notice ol meetings setling oul the agenda and accompanied by the relevant Board
papers are distributed to the Directors to enable them to peruse and if require to
obtain further information on issues to be deliberated.

Members of the Board are also given unrestricted access to the advices and
services of the Company Secretary and other professional advisors in discharging
their duties and responsibilities al the expense of the Group. All comporate
announcements including quarterly financial results will be reviewed and
approved by the Board prior to anv announcement being made fo the Bursa
Malaysia Secuntics Berhad.

Directors’ Training

The Board, as a whole, ensures that it recruits to the Board only individuals of
sufficient calibre, knowledge and experience to fulfil the duties of a Director
appropriately. At the date of this statement, all the Directors have attended and
successfully completed the Mandatory Accreditation Program (MAP) prescribed
by the Bursa Securities.

During the financial year under review, the Directors had participated in varous
programmes and seminars as set oul below 1o enhance their knowledpe and

expertise:
Type of Training / Seminars Altendad Mame of Organiser
 Malaysion Code on Corporple  Governance 2012 & | Joinlly erganised by KPMG and
Recogniticn and Management of risk Boardroom  Corporate  Services

= Briefing on The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governanee | KPMG

= Direetors” and Sharcholders” dealing with the Cormpany Institute of Approved Company
= Securities for bormowing — charges and debentures Secretaries

»MFRSTFRES guide for Audit Committees, Independent | Malaysia Institute of Accountants
Direciors and Imemal Audiiors

= Bustainability Tratning for Direciors and Practittoners I Burse Malaysia Berhad
= Malaystan Cosde on Corporate Governance 2012 Boardroom  Corporate  Services
~ Latest updates in Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia ~ (Penang) Sdn Bhd

F Guidelines on Statement of Risk Management & Internal
Control by the Institute of Infernal Avditors BMalaysia

Training for Directors will continue so as to eénsure that they kept abreast with
regulatory and governance developments.




STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY jconro)

Appointment and Re-election

In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company,
at least one-third of the Directors shall retire from office each vear at the Annual
General Meeting and all Directors shall retire from office once at least in each
three (3} years but shall be eligable for re-election.

Directors over seventy (70) vears of age are required to submit themselves for re-

appointment annually in accordance with Section 129(6) of the Companies Act,
19635,

B. Directors’ Remuneration
The Board as a whole approves the remuneration of the Executive Directors with
the Directors concemed abstaining from the decision in respect of their

remuneration,

The details of the remuneration for the Directors of the Company during the
financial vear ended 31 March 2013 are as follows:-

Fees Salaries Bonuses Benefits in kinds Tatal

RM 000 LAGR T RM"000 RM MM LG R T
Pxecutive 164 712 232 5h 1,169
D¥reciors
MNon Excoutive o0 - - - Qi
Threciors

The number of Directors whose total remuneration falls within the following

bands:
Range ull‘ H:m":rm:h;u _ Emuﬂﬂ . Non-Executive

Below BM 50,000 - o
RM 450,001 1o RM 500,000 1
RM 700,001 1o RM 750,000 _ 1

3. Shareholders

The Group recognizes the importance of keeping its sharcholders and the general
public informed of the development and performance of the Group, The Board
views the Annual General Meeting as the primary forum to communicate with
sharcholders. Annual General Meeting held each year provide an excellent
platform for sharcholders and members of the press to participate in the question
and answer session. All Boand members, senior management and the Group's
external auditors are available to respond o shareholders” questons during the
Annual General Meeting,

In addition, quarterly financial results and corporate anmouncements are
announced ttmely to disseminate pertinent information of the Group, The Group




STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (conrp

also organizes plant visits and holds regular meetings with analysts and fund
managers who are interested to acquire further information about the Group.

4. Accountahility and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Board aims to provide and present a balanced and meaningful assessment of
the Group’s performance and prospects primarily through the annual financial
statements, gquarterly result announcement to shareholders and Chairman's
statement in the annual report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board is responsible to ensure that financial statements of the Group give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
accounting period and of their profit and loss and cash flows for the period then
ended. In prepanng the financial statements, the Directors have ensured that
applicable approved accounting standards for entities other than private entities
issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1965 have been applied.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have selected and applied
consistently suitable accounting policies and made reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates,

The Directors also have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other imegulanties.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible to maintan a sound systerm of intermal control t©
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is,
nevertheless, aware that the system of internal control is designed to manage
rather than eliminate risks and therefore cannot provide an absolute assurance
apgainst material misstatement, fraed or loss.

At this juncture, the Board is of the view that the current system of internal control
in place throughout the Group is sufficient to address its intended objective.

Relationship with Auditors

The Board through the Audit Committee ensures that an appropriate and
transparent relationship is established with the external auditors. During the
course of audit, all relevant documents are made available to the external auditors.
The external auditors are given the opportunity to highlight any issues requining
the Board's attention to the Audit Committee directly,




STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (conrp)

5. Statement on Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility towards the betterment of environment, community and welfare of

its employees.
Environmenl

The Group ensured the compliance of all environmental laws and regulations by
integrated corporate social responsibilities practices into its daily operations. The
Group undertake this by promoeting and maintaining environmental best practices
such as recycling of waste materials and usage of electrical instead of fuel
consumed forklift. In view of the importance of environmental sustainability, the
Group creates awareness among employvecs on environment conservation by
encouraging emplovees to adopt the choice of 3R lifestyle, “Redoce, Reuse and
Recyele” wherever possible in order to minimise the use of new resources,

Community

The Group continues with its support to various local charitable organisations.
The Group was involved in a fund raising campaign to elevate the lives of
underprivileged communities.

Asia File's staff took time to visit Bethal Home, an old folk home in Penang. The
Group contributed food stuffs and necessities to the Home. Apant from spending
time with the old folks at the Home and giving them encouragement, staff also
dipped into their pockets and contributed cash and others generously.

The Group recognised the importance of cducation. During the wyear, files,
stationenies and computer 1tems were given out to primary and secondary schools
in Penang. The Group has also sponsored fles and stationery in support of
community events organized by certain communities or organizations.

Workplace

The Group strived to ensure an environmental-friendly, healthy and safe
workplace for all employees. To achieve this, steps were taken to ensure that
equipment and building safety systems were functioning properly and well
maintained. The Group has also orgamised fire drlls and plant evacuation
exercises at ils various properties lo create awareness and to instil safety
consciousness within its workforce.

The Group coordinates with health service providers to conduct health talks for iis
cmployees to create awarencss on health issucs and to promote a healthy lifestyle
amongst staff. All employees are encoursged to attend medical check-up to
facilitate early detection and treatment of any serious illness.

The Group also organised festive celebration to encourage employees to mingle
and intcract with onc another to foster tcam spint and build closer working
relationship. The 2012 Annual Dinner themed “Intemational Night” was held on
08 September 2012,




STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (conrp

The Group perceives its human capital as an imperative asset. As part of its
human capital development, various in-house programmes and job skills related
trainings were conducted to equip the cmployees with improved skills and
knowledge, The Group also sponsored employees to attend external seminars and
workshops to keep them abreast of new developments in their respective field of

expertise.
6. Other Information
Material Contracts

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries
invalving directors and major sharcholders of Asia File Corporation Bhd.

Mon — Audit Fees

During the year, a total of RM12,843 was paid to KPMG for non-audit services
rendered.

Shares Buy Back
During the year, a total of 200 shares of Asia File Corporation Bhd were
purchased and retained as treasury shares pursuant to the Shares Buy Back

scheme.

The details of share buy back during the year are as follows:-

Total Highest Lowest Average Total
Number of Price Price Price Consideration
Shares Paid Paid Paid
Purchased
RM EM BAM BM
June 2012 [ (0 .50 360 .60 380,11
December 2012 1) A.60 .60 3.60 JR.T1

7. Compliance Statement

The Group has complied with the relevant principles and recommendations of the
MCCG 2012 throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2013 with the
exception of the followings:-

(a) The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are combined, the details of
which are fully explained in the Board Balance and Independence
on 10 to 11 of this Annual Report.

(b} The Board does not have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
to 1t for decision as it has been the Board's practice to deliberate on matters
that invalve overall Group strategy and direction, acquisition and divestment
policy, approval of capital expenditure, consideration of significant financial
matters and the review of the financial and operating performance of the
Group.
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (conrp)

{c) The Board, together with the Managing Director, has not developed position
descriptions for the Board and the Managing Director. The Board recognizes
the importance for a proper identification of the roles and authonzation
limits of Management and will consider adopting a Board Charter to
delineate the roles and responsibilities of executive and non-executive
directors.

(d) The Board as a whole recommends the remuneration of cach director,
Individual director does not participate in deliberations and wvoting on
decisions in respect of his remuneration package. In view of the above, the
Giroup does not form a Remuneration Committee.




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Composition and Meetings:

The composition of the Audit Committee during the financial year under review is as
follows:

MName of member Position

Mr Khoo Khai Hong : ; :
{resigned on 1L/06:2012) Chairman/Tndependent Mon-Executive Director

bir Mg Chin Nam s ¥ ;
(appointed on 11/0672012) Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Oni Ean Chin
{resigned on 1 1/06:2012)

Ms Lam Voon Kean
(nppeinied on 1 TA2012)

Puan Nurjannah Binti Al Member/Independent Non-Executive Director

Member/Independent Mon-Exccutive Director

Memben™on-Independent Non-Executive Director

During the vear, a total of four (4) meetings were convened. Details of attendance of the
Committee members are as follows:-

Name of member Attendance
Khoo Khai Hong 1/1

Wi Chin Nam 33
Ooi Ean Chin 1/1
Lam Voon Kean 39
Nurjannah Binta Ali /4
Summary of Activities:

The Audit Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its terms and reference
during the year.

The main activities carmied oul by the Commuttee during the year were as [ollows:-
- reviewed the audit reporis and audit results with the external auditors;
- reviewed the quarterly and annual report of the Group before recommending for the
Board's approval. The focus of review will be on:-
(#) changes in implementation of major accounting policies;
(b) significant and unusual events;
(c) compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements;
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- reviewed the Group’s compliance with the Listing Requirements of the Bursa
Malaysia Sccuritics Berhad, Malaysian Accounting Standard Board and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirement;

- reviewed related party transactions entered into by the Group;

- reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group,

- reviewed the findings of the internal audit function and to ensure appropriate actions
were taken and recommendation implemented.

Internal Aodit Fonction

The Audit Commuttec 15 aware of the importance of an independent and adequately
resourced intermal audit function for the effectivencss of the intermal control system. The
Group has an Internal Audit Depariment whose principal responsibility is o conduct
internal audits on financial and operational matters of the Group. Internal audit reporis
are presented to the Audit Commitiee during the Audit Committee meeting. The findings
and recommendations were highlighted to the management for their comments and
necessary action, The cost incurred by the Group in relation to the internal audit functions
during the [inancial year amounted to approximately RM 210,000,

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Membership

The Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the Directors of the
Company. All members of the Committce should be Non-Execcutive Directors, with a
majority of whom must be independent. It shall consist of no less than three (3) members
and at least one member must fulfll the following entena:-

= a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ; or
- if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least
three (3) years of working experience and
(a) he must have passed the examination specified in Part T of the 1" Schedule to the
Accountanis Act, 1967; or
(b) he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part 11
of the 1st Schedule to the Accountants Act 1967; or
- fulfils such other requirements as may be prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia
securities Berhad from time o lime,

The Chairman of the committee shall be an independent Non-Executive Director. No
Alternate Director of the Board should be appointed as a member of the Committee.

In the event of any vacancy in the Committee which results in the number of members o
be reduced to below three (3), the Board shall fill the vacancy within three (3) months.




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (contp)

Meeting Procedures

The Committee is to meet at least four (4) times 2 year or more frequently as the need
arises.

In order to form a quorum for the meeting, the majonty of the members present must be
independent Non-Executive Directors, In the absence of the Chairman, the members
present shall elect a Chairman from amongst them.

Group Financial Controller and Head of Intermal Audit Department will usually attend the
meeting and the presence of external auditors may be requested if required. The
Commutiee may, as and when necessary, mvite other Board members and semor
management members to attend the meeting.

At least twice a vear, the Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors without
the Exccutive Director and senior management being present.

Authority

In fu]ﬁl]mg its duties, the Committes is granted the authonty to:-
mvestigate any activities of the Group within its term of reference;
have unrestricted access to information;
directly communicate with the employees of the Group and/or external auditors;
obtain at the cost of the Growp legal and other necessary professional advise
it considers necessary ;
be able o convene meetings with the external auditors, the intemal auditors or both,
excluding the attendance of other directors and employees of the listed issuer,
whenever deemed necessary;
report to the relevant authorities on any unresolved issues which result in breaching
of any regulatory requirement.

Scope of Responsibilities
The duties and responsibilities of the Committee encompass the followings:-

to review the audit scope and plan with external auditors;

to review external audit reports to ensure that prompt corrective actions are taken to

address issues (including any deficiencics in internal control system) highlighted;

to review the assistance and cooperation rendered by the Group’s employees to the

external auditors;

to consider the performance of the external auditors, their appointment, audit fees and

issues of resignation or dismissal;

to review the followings in respect of the intermal andit functions:-

{a} adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit
functions and whether it has the necessary authority o carry oul its work;
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{b) to review the findings of the internal andit function and to ensure appropriate
actions were taken and recommendation implemented;
{c) the effectiveness of the intemal audit function.

o review the quarterly results and vear end financial statements, prior to Board’s
approval, focusing mainly on:-

{2) changes in implementation of major accounting policics;

(b} sigmificant or unusual events;

() compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements;

to review any related party transaction and situation where conflict of interest may
arse;

- to review the allocation of options pursuant to Asia File Corporation Bhd Employees
Share Option Scheme;
to undertake any responsibilities as anthorized by the Board.




NOMINATION COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Compaosition

]2 Members
The members of the Committee shall comprise exclusively of Non-
Executive Directors and number at least three (1) in total, a majority of whom
being independent.

2. Chairman
The Chairman of the Commitiee shall be an Independent Non-Executive
Director appointed by the Board.

3. Secretary
The Secretary of the Committee shall be the Company Secretary or any other
person so appeinted by the Committee from time to time.

Meetings

1 Attendance
The Executive Directors may be invited to attend meetings as necessary.

2. Frequency of Meetings
The Committee shall meet at least once a year. Additional meetings may be
held as and when necessary.

3. Quorum
The quorum of the Committee shall be at least two members.

4. Minutes of Meetings
The minutes of meetings of the Committes shall be circulated to all members
of the Board.

Advisers

The Committee is authorised by the Board to appoint professional advisers and to
seek appropriate professional advice inside and outside the group as and when
it considers this necessary.
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Functions and Responsibilities

1. To review the balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors (including
Independent Directors) with an aim to achieving a balance of views on the
Board.

2 To assess and recommend to the Board all candidates for directorships to be
f'l.led bv the shareholders or the Board, taking into consideration the candidates’:
Skills, knowledge, expertise and experience;

. Professionalism;
. Integrity; and
. In the case of candidates for the position of independent Non-Executive

Directors, evaluate the candidates® ability to discharge such
responsibilities / functions as expected from independent Non-Executive
Directors.
i To consider in making its recommendations, candidates for directorships
proposed by the Chief Executive Officer and within the bound of practicability,

by any other senior executive or any director or shareholder.

4. To ensure a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of new
directors to the Board.

3. To assess and recommend to the Board, directors to fill the seats on Board
Committees.

fa. To review the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including
core competencies, of the members of the Board.

1. To assess the contribution of each individual director, the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole and the committees of the Board.




STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

Introduction

Parapraph 15.26(b) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements
requires the Board of Directors of public listed companies to include in its annual report a
statement about the state of internal control of the listed issuer as a8 group. The Board is
committed to maintaining a sound system of internal control and risk management in the
Group (comprising the Company and its subsidiaries) and is pleased to provide the
following statement which outlines the nature and scope of risk management and internal
control of the Group during the year. The Board has received assurance from the
Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer that the Group's risk management and
intermal control system is operating adequately and cffectively, The associated companics
of the Group have not been dealt with as part of the Group for the purpose of applying
this guidance as the Group does not have management control over its operations.

Board Responsibility

The Board 15 responsible for the adeguacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control and risk management which includes the establishment of an appropriate
control environment and framework as well as reviewing its adequacy and integrity.

The Board recogmises the necd to have a formal ongoing process for identifyving,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This process has been
in place throughout the financial year and up to the date of approval of this statement.
The Board also recognises that a good control system will assist the achievement of
corporate objectives. However, in view of the limitations inherent in any system of
internal control, the system is designed to manage rather than climinate the risk of failure
to achieve corporate objectives. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable but pot
absolute assurance against material misstatement, fraud or loss.

Risk Management

Risk management 15 firmly embedded in the Group's key processes through its Enterprise
Risk Management framework, in line with the Recommendation 6.1 of the Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance 2012, The Board and the Management continuously
identify, evaluate and manage significant business risks that may affect the achievement
of the Group's business objectives.

Written reports on risk management had been presented to the Audit Committee and the

Board on the various potential risks impacting the Group. Reporting procedures and
monitoring mechanisms have been established to address the above risks.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL iconrpi

Internal Audit Fanction

Internal Audit Department of the Group reviews and updates the internal control
processes with the objective of improving the control environment of the Group. The
principal responsibility of the Internal Auwdit Departmenmt is to regularly review the
systems of internal controls of the varous departments within the Group. Intermal audits
are conducted based on risk assessment as well as internal audit programmes established.
Risks identified and findings from the internal audits carried out during the year were
tabled at the quarterly Audit Committee meetings.

Internal Control

Key elements of the current internal contro] of the Group imclode:-

* Key internal contrel checklist by functional areas which sets out the various key
processes and controls across functions within the Group.

* Monthly management reports are submitted by Head of Department to the
Managing Director to analyse, discuss and resolve pertinent issues affecting the
operations of the Group. Financial statistics and operation issues are presented in
the management reports.

*  The management has introduced the standard operating procedures that set out the
guidelines for the various processes of the Group.

* The Group operates within an organizational structure with defined lines of
responsibilities and accountability,

* The Executive Directors are actively involved in day-to-day operations of the
Group. The performance of the Group is reviewed and monitored by the
Executive Directors.

There were no material losses incurmed during the current financial year as a result of

wensknesses in intermal control,  The Group will continue to review and implement
measures to improve the control environment of the Group.

This statement 15 issued in accordance with 2 resolution of the Board of Directors dated
31 July 2013,
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DIRECTOR’'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2013,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are that of investment holding, commission agent
and provision of managemenl services. The principal activities ol the subsidiaries are as
stated in Note 6 1o the financial statements.

There has been no significant change m the nature of these activitics during the financial

year,
Results
Group Company
REM REM
Profit for the year attributable to;
Owners of the Company 42,891,330 25,758,013
Non-controlling interests 349,075 =
43,240,405 25,758,013

Reserves and provisions

There were no matenal transfers (o or from reserves and provisions during the financial year
except as disclosed in the financial statements,

Dividends

Since the end of the previous financial vear, the Company paid :
i) an interim single-tier dividend of 8% on 115,626,130 ordinary shares of RMI1 each

totalling RM9,250,090 in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2012 on 29 May
2012,
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013 (conrn)

Dividends (continued)

i) a final single-tier dividend of 13.5% on 115802730 ordinary shares of RM1 cach
totalling RM15,633,369 in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2012 on 27
December 200 2; and

iii} an interim single-tier dividend of 8% on 115,847,030 ordinary shares of RMI each
totalling RM9,267,762 in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2013 on 28 May
2013.

A final single-tier dividend of 12.5% has been recommended by the Directors in respect of
the financial year ended 31 March 2013, subject to the approval of the members at the
forthcoming Annual General Mecting.

Directors of the Company
Directors who served since the date of the last report are

Lim Soon Huat

Lim Soon Wah

Nurjannah Binti Ali

Ng Chin Nam

Lam Voon Kean

Lim Soon Hec {Altemative to Mr, Ng Chin Nam)

Directors’® interests in shares

The interests and deemed interests in the shares and options of the Company and of its related
corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at vear end
{including the interests of the spouse and/or children of the Directors who themselves are not
Directors of the Company) as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Sharcholdings are as
follows

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 cach
Balance Balance
at ESOS at
1.420M2 Bought exercised (Seld)  31.3.2013
Interest in the Company :

Lim Soon Huat
= DWN BAG.391 39800 - - 929,191
- others * 2,624 600 - 12,000 - 2,636,600
Lim Soon Wah
= W 2,489 825 - - - 2,489,825
- others * 152,320 - - - 152,320
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013 (cont)

Directors’ interests in shares (continued)

Number of ordinary shares of RMI each
Balance Balance
at ESOS at
1.4.2012  Bought exercised (Sold)  31.3.2013

Decmed interest in the Company ;

Lim Soon Huat
- OWTI 32,336,837 - - - 32,336,837

* These arc shares held in the name of the spouse andfor children and are treated as
interests of the Director in accordance with Section [34(12)¢) of the Companies Act,

1965,
Number of options over ordinary shares of
RM1 each
Balance at Balance at
1.4.2012  Granted (Exercised) 31.3.2013
Interest in the Company
Lim Soon Huat
- OWn 825,000 - - 825,000
Lim Soon Wah
- own (9,000 - - 609,000
Nurjannah Binti Afi
- wm 40,000 x = 40,000

By virtue of his interests in the Company, Mr. Lim Soon Huat is also deemed to have interest
in the shares of the subsidiarics to the extent the Company has an interest.

MNone of the other Directors holding ofTice at 31 March 2013 had any interest in the ordinary
shares and options over the shares of the Company and of its related corporations during the
financial year.

Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor
become entitled Lo receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount
of emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors as shown in the financial
staternents of the Company and its related corporations) by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director 1s a
member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial Anancial interest, other
than certain Directors who may be deemed 1o denve a benefit from those transactions entered
into in the ordinary course of business between certain companies in the Group and
companies in which a Director and his close family members have substantial financial
nterests as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013 (contp

Directors’ benefits (continued)

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object
of cnabling Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate other than those arising
from the share options granted under the Employees” Share Option Scheme (“ES0OS”) of the
Company.

Issue of shares and debentures
During the financial year, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased

from RM116,025,730 to RM116,246,830 through the issuance of 221,100 new ordinary
shares of RM .00 each for cash from the exercise of ESOS as follows

Number of
ordinary
shares of

Exercise RML.00 each
price issued
RM
Exercise of options under ESOS 3.14 1 66,600
Exercise ol options under ESOS 3.10 54,500

There were no other changes in the authonsed, issued and paid-up capital of the Company
and no debentures were issued by the Company during the financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the
financial year apart from the issue of options pursuant to the ESOS,

Employees® share option scheme

The Company’'s Emplovees' Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme™) was approved by the
sharcholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM'™) held on 20 April 2007,

The main features of the Scheme are as follows :

1)  The total number of shares to be offered under the Scheme shall not exceed 15% of the
issued and paid-up share capital of the Company or such maximum percentage as
allowable by the relevant authorities at any point in ime during the existence ol the
Scheme. In the event the maximum number of shares offered exceeds 15% of the
issued and paid-up share capital or such maximum percentage as allowable by the
relevant authorities as a result of the Company purchasing its own shares and thereby
diminishing its issued and paid-up share capital, then the options granted prior to the
adjustment of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company shall remamn valid
and exercisable but there shall not be any further offer;
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013 (cont)

Employees’ share option scheme (continued)
The main features of the Scheme are as follows (continued) ;

ii)  The Scheme shall be in force for a period of five years commencing from 23 April 2007
being the last date on which the Company obtained all relevant approvals required for
the Scheme. The Scheme, which had expired on 22 Apnl 2012, has been extended for
another five years until 21 April 2017;

iii)  The option is personal to the grantee and is not assignable, transferable, disposable or
chanpeable except for certain conditions provided for in the By-Laws;

iv) Eligible persons are employees and Executive Directors, who are involved m the day-
to-day management and on the payroll of the Group who have been confirmed in the
employment of the Group and have been in the employment of the Group for a
continuous period of at least six (6) months immediately preceding the date of offer, the
date when an offer is made in writing to an employee to participate in the Scheme;

v)  No options shall be granted for less than one hundred (100} shares nor ;

(a) not more than fifty percent (50%) of the total number of shares to be issued under
the Scheme shall be allotted in aggregate to Directors and Senior Management of
the Group; and

(b) not more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of shares to be issued under the
Scheme shall be allotted to any Eligible Director or Employee of the Group who
either singly or collectively through persons connected with the Director or
Employee, holds twenty percent (20%) or more of the issued and paid-up ordinary
share capital of the Company.

The maximum allowable allotment does not include additional shares which arisen
pursuznt to event stipulated in (viii).

vi} The exercise price for cach ordinary share shall be set at a discount of not more than
10%, il deemed appropriate, or such lower or higher limil as approved by the relevant
autherities, from the weighted average of the market price of the shares as shown in the
Daily Odfficial List issued by the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the five (5)
market days preceding the date of offer or at par value of the shares, whichever is
higher;

vii} The options granted do not confer any dividend or other distribution declared to the
shareholders as at a date which precedes the date of exercise of the option and will be
subject to all the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company; and

viil) In the event of any alleration i the capital structure of the Company during the oplion
pericd, whether by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves, rights issues, reduction
of capital, subdivision, consolidation of shares or otherwise {excluding the purchase by
the Company of its own shares) howsoever taking places, such corresponding
alterations (if any) shall be made in the number of shares relating to the unexercised
optiens and option price.




DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013 (contp)

Emplovees’ share option scheme (continued)

The options offered to take up umssued ordinary shares of RM1 each and the exercise price
are as follows :

Number of options over ordinary shares of RM1 each

Lapsed due
Date of Exercise HBalance at to Balance at
offer price 1.42012 Granted Exercised resignation 3132013
27.4.2007 314 1,742,970 - (16:6,600) (18.800) 1,557,570
20.4.2009 4.11 TET,000 - - - 787,000
1.10.2011 110 3,628 600 - {54,500) (1150000 3,459,100

Other statutory information

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the
Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that

i) all known bad debts have been written ofl and adequate provision made for doubtful
debis, and

it) any current asscts which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business
have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise,

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances :

i) that would render the amount written off for bad debts, or the amount of the provision for
doubtful debts, in the Group and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

ii) that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial staterments of
the Group and of the Company misleading, or

i1} which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, that would render any
amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

Al the date of this report, there does not exist :

i} any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of
the financial year and which secures the liabilitics of any other person, or

1) any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has ansen since
the end of the financial year,
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Other statutory information (continued)

Mo contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become
enforcesble, or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months afler the
end of the financial vear which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially
afTect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they
fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, the {inancial performance of the Group and of the Company
for the financial vear ended 31 March 2013 have not been substantially affected by any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such item, transaction or
event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this

report,
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Auditors
The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to sccept re-appointment.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors :

Lim Soon Huat

Lim Soon Wah

Penang,

Date : 31 July 2013




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

Note  31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Asgsels
Property, plant and equipment 3 101,984,833 89,188,693 90,153,204
Prepaid lease payments 4 1,639,577 1,678,454 1,717,329
Investment properties 5 1. B5E, 570 1,909,168 1,959 766
Investment in an associate 7 117,982,444 116310238 108,320,358
Goodwill on consolidation & 30,234 456 30,234 456 30,234,456
Total non-current assels 253,699,880 239321009 232385113
Trade and other receivables 9 61,502,364 63,691,674 47,296,313
Inventories 10 101,154,347 94 813,785 71,196,768
Current tax assets 10,030 12,101 32,804
Cash and cash equivalents 11 42,348,270 57,142,508 80,862,647
Total current assets 205015011 215,660,068 199,388,621
Total assets 458,714,891 454981077 431,773,735
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2013 jcontp)
Note  31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM

Equity

Share capital 12 116,246,830 116,025,730 115,506,930

Treasury shares 13 (1,843,820) (1,843,042) (1,204,391)

Reserves 14 270,644,502 254,775,588 229,763,839
Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company 385,047,512  368,958276 343,766,378

Non-controlling interests Q0,461 - -
Total equity (385,137,973 368,958,276 343,766,378
Liabilities

Defermed tax habilities 15 7,383,287 7,504,063 7,829,494

Bank borrowings 17 - 2,258,401 6,807,007
Total non-current liabilities 7,383,287 9,562,464 14,636,591

Trade and other payables 16 34,636,672 43 444 930 36,024,512

Bank borrowings 17 18,067,262 21,017,600 25,278,507

Current tax payables 4,221,935 2747717 1,571,204

Dividend payable 9,267,762 9,250,090 10,496,543
Total current liabilities 66,193,631 76,460,337 73,370,766
Total liabilities 73,576,918  B6,022.801  H8,007,357
Total equity and liabilities 458,714,891 454,981,077 431,773,735

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an intepral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
Note 2013 2012
RM RM
Revenue 19 323,384 372 276,322,752
Cost of sales (198, 78R, 839) (168,848,296)
Gross profit 124,595,533 107,474,456
Distribution costs (14,295,233) (11,333,878)
Administrative expenses (55.862.810) (48.941,397)
Other operating expenses (3.910,154) (1,935,837)
Other operating income 2,171,570 1,680,661
(71,896,627) (58.530,451)
Results from operating activities 52,698,906 48,944 005
Share of profits after tax of equity accounted
assOCciates 3,834,000 8,981,320
Finance costs (406,901) (720,635)
Profit before tax 20 56,126,005 57,204,690
Income tax expense 23 (12,885 600) (8.481,592)
Profit for the year 43,240,405 48,723,098
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (contp)

Other comprehensive (expense)income,
net of tax

Foreign exchange translation difTerences
from foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income of
equity accounted associates

Total other comprehensive expense for
the vear

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit attributable to:
Crwmers of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit for the vear

Total comprehensive income attributable to ;
Owmners of the Company
MNon-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the yvear
Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (sen)

Note

24

24

2013 2012
RM RM
(2,606,494) (2,608,503)
(973,218) 237,744
(3.579,712) (2,370,759)
19,660,693 46,352,339
42,891,330 48,723,098
349,075 -
43,240,405 48,723,098
39,570,212 46,352,339
90,461 3
19 660,693 46,352,339
37.05 42.18
16.86 41.84

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an intepral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

CLELEI'SEE  19¥D6  CTISLMO'SBE  TOTOTIFST (R9¥'LS9'%)  SECEMIT  EECZEOR] (DIEEPS1)  OERORTOII €107 920N 153V
ELE'ET - (ELE'ET) : * = pasde| suondo 103
aasoeas uonds arys wosy sagsue |
= = (EeL'cird | - - posruza swoendo
ATRIE 0y onEnaad aIeE o Eysue |
CIH'H - CTR'H = - (Fo1'"c) F T T - - SPELIOREN - $3ALI83I nonsInbae-wo g
(T8 RREET) 4 (IZ96RF'ET)  LLEL 108" PT) " PLOOTL FLEDLE (ELL) 001 IEE SSAN A0 (0] 0L QISR 0y
UOTIT LN (B30 ]
(11 106'FE) - (LErtoe'vT) (1€l 106'v2) - - - - (§7 MOp) SpUBPIALC
PLOTED " PLOTHS = - - FLADLE - 001°1ZE BOSH @ wEnEnd sarEys 1o nss|
FINOTL - FINOTL - - PIO'OTL - - - (g1 0N swsmind peseg-amgsg
(#el) # (HLL) - » = (gLL) - paumnbae saseps Amsead |
ERU'(99°6E 19¢°06 CET' LS RE a0k 1 {60L9RT'E) . - . . Jwad ay)
Aoy Ao aspsuagasdmos (e
SOFDFTEF  SLO'GEE DEC'TARTEF  OFE I6E'TH - - - - - TR 3N 0y TW0ig
(ZIL6L8'e)  (p19'857) (REOIZE'E)  (6BL'FEO'T)  (60L'08T'T) - - - - 2k s a0
DUERXIEN QA YRMALIND D [0 ]
(R1TELE} - (R1T°ELa) (6REFEDT) 1L1°19 - - - - HTIOEEE
panmaasn Linba jo s
aarsuaaadiee 120 [0 arey
(et ang'z) r19'RsT) 115 1A - (ORR"LPE'T} - = L = suagado
TII0] WY SRR
wenpipsuery affungyys ufias g
SLTRCARIL - QLTRCAROE  BLOLEILET  (6SL'0LET) LIROTET  L15°849°L1 (ZHD'EFR'1)  OEL'STO'SLL 10z nady 1V
WH WH WH WH wH WwH WH WH W
Aypmba S153Ha3m) TEIE] SSEILIED EEERLEE] ETE AL g ELIEGS rEnpdes
[ Funfpoywos paupnEy  wopmsaun ] unydo aanyy AdngEad | awyg
L ELULY| WIEQY

HAEIn L] U ER LTy
-+ Amedwoy a1 JO SIA0MD O] HQEINGLINY

4’“ Agie Fileg Corporatian Bhd



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MARCH 2013 (conto)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

42 ania Fria Carporation Bha

Mote

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for
Depreciation
- Property, plant and equipment
- Investment propertics
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
(iain on disposal of plant and equipment
Interest expense
Interest income
Share of profit after tax of equity
accounted associates
Share-based payments 18

BEE ]

Operating profit before changes in working
capital

Changes in working capital :
Inventorics
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid

MNet cash from operating activities

2013

36,126,005

10,852,626
50,598
38,877

(10,316)
406,901
(497,464)

(3,834 000)
720,014

63,853,241

(B, 248,457)
96,974
{6,083,235)

(11,282.216)

38,836,107

2012

27,204,690

9,305,898
50,508
38,875

(141,579)
720,635
(850,612)

(8,981,320}
1,217,185

58,564,370

(16,919,377
(24,642,791)
8,126,747

25,128,949

(7,789,317)

17,339,632



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (conrp)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment
Acquisition of investment in an associate

Dividend received from associate
Interest received

Net cash used in Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of short term borrowings, net

Repayments of term loans
Repayments of finance lease habihties

Proceeds from shares issued under ESOS

Repurchase of treasury shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities
el decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash

and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

MNote

13

2013 2012
RM RM
(24,592,168) (9,580,736)
46,787 228,413
(320,997) (250,771)
1,518,400 1,507,040
497 464 850,612
(22,810,514) (7,245,442)
(724,568) (108,113)
(4,328,153) {8,360,000)
(116,051) (195,466)
692,074 1,630,596
(778) (338,651)
(24,8%3,459) (24,943,109)
(406,901) (720,635)
(29,767,836) (33,035,378)
(13,742,243) (22,941,188)
57,046,808 80,762,652
(1,055,792) (774,656)
42 248,773 57.046,808
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (contn)

NOTE

Cash and caxh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the
following consolidated statement of financial position amounts :

Note 2013 2012
RM RM

Short term deposits with licensed banks 11 21,542,872 20,051,948

Cash and bank balances i1 20,805,308 37,090,560

Bank overdrafis 17 (99,497) (95,700)

42,248 773 57,046,808

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

Assels

Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in an associate

Total non-current asscts
Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Treasury shares
Keserves

Total equity

Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Dividend payable

Total current liabilitics

Total equity and liabilities

Note

11

12
13
14

16

31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
48,760,941 48515895 23,252,709
5,073,921 4,752,924 4,502,153
53834862 53268819 27,754,862
137847300 128537498 146,249,350
5,072 7,143 27.936
161,755 3,799,391 4,577,630
138,014,127 132,344,032  150,854.916
191,848,989 185,612,851 178,609,778
116,246,830 116,025,730 115,506,930
(1,843.820)  (1,843,042)  (1.504,391)
41,823,290 39775420 32,707,950
156,226,300 153,958,108 146,710,489
26,354,927 22404653 21,402,746
9,267,762 9,250,090 10,496,543
15622689 31,654,743 31899289
191,848,989 185,612,851 178,609,778

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

MNote 2013 2012
RM RM
Revenue 19 28,173,027 31,277,405
Administrative expenses (2,622,111) (2,791,372)
Other operating expenses (294,393) (62,945)
Other operating income 586,280 45,270
HResults from operating activities 25,842 803 28,468,358
Finance costs (18} -
Profit before tax 20 25,842,785 28,468,358
[ncome tax expense 23 (84.772) {33.213)
Profit for the year representing total
comprehensive income for the year 25,758,013 28,435,145

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an intepral part of these financial statements.




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED AT 31 MARCH 2013

At 1 April 20011

Profit and total
comprehensive
income for the year

Treasury shares
acguired
Share-lased payments
(Wolz 1)
Shares issued
pursuant o BSOS
Divideids (Mot 25)

Total contribotion
from/{distribution
to) owners

Transfer to share
premium for share
oplions exercised

Transfer from share

oplion reserve for

AL31 Mareh 2012

Mon-distributable ——«  Distribuialle

Share
Share Treasury Share oplion Retained Total
capital sharcs preminm FESEIYe CATIinES cquity
RM RM RM RM RM RM
115,506,930  (1,504,361) 16,086,546 108800 15,312,604 146,710,489
: F 2 B M A435,145 28,435,145
(338,651) {338,651)
- - - 1,217,185 - E21T.185
518,800 - 1,111,794 . - 1,630,596
= = = = {23,496,636) (23,606,636)
F18,500 (338,651} 1111794 1217185 (23.6%94,656) (Z1.187.526)
< « 231,629 {231.62%) -
- . . (33.604) 33,600
116,025,730 (1,343.042) 17429971 2260747 20084702 153,958 108

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (conrpj

@ Mondistributable -« Distributable

Share
Share Treasury Share ption Retained Total
capital shares premium reSCEvE carnings equity
KM BM "M L] RBM (4%

ALT April 2012 116,025,730  (1,643,042) 17429971 2,260,747 20,084,702 153,958,108
Profit and total

comprehensive

fncome for the year - - - - 25738013 25758013
Trensury shares

acguined - (778} - - - {T78)
Share-hased

(Mate 18) - . . T20,014 . 720,014
Bhares isswed pursuant

to ESOE 221,100 - 470,974 - - 692,074
Dividends {(MNote 25) - - - - (24.901,131) (24,901,131)
Total coniribution

Trom/distribution

ti) owners 221,100 (778) 470,974 T20,014 (24,901,131) (23,489.521)
Transfer to shane

promium for share

options exercised . . 115,755 (115,755)
Transfier from share

option reserve for

options lapsed - - - (23,373) 3373 -

At31 March 2013 116,246,830 (1.841,820) 1R016,700 2,841,633 20964957 156,226,300

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Note 2013 2012
RM RM

Cash fMlows from operating activities
Profit before tax 25,842 785 28,468 358
Adjustments for ;

Dividend income (25,896,753) (29,136,38K)

Interest Income (550,895) (40,956)

Share-based payments 474,968 753,999
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in

working capital (129,895) 45,013
Changes in working capital :

Other receivables (9,309,802) 17,711,852

Other payables 3,950,274 1,001,907
Cash {used in)/generated from operations {5,489.421) 18,758,772

Income tax paid (82,701) (12,4200

Dividend received 25 896,753 29,136,388
Net cash from operating activities 20,324,629 47,882,740
Cash flows from investing activities

Tnterest received 550,895 40,956

Acquisition of investments in subsidianes - (24, E00,0007

Acquisition of investment in an associate (320,997) (230,771)
Net eash from/(used in) investing activities 229,498 (25,009,815)

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (contn)

Note 2013 201z
RM RM
Cash Nows from financing activities
Proceeds from shares 1ssued under ESOS 692,074 1,630,596
Repurchase of treasury shares 13 (778) (338,651)
Dividends paid (24,883,439) (24,943,109)
Net cash used in financing activities (24,192,163) (23,651,164)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,637.636) (778,239)
Cash and cash equivalents at | April 3,799.39] 4,577,630
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 11 161,755 3,799,391

The notes on pages 51 to 123 are an intepral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Asia File Corporation Bhd. is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled
in Malaysia and 15 listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The
addresses of its registered office and principal place of business are as follows :

Registered office

Suite 2-1, 2nd Floor,

Menara Penang Garden

42A, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah
16050 Penang

Principal place of business

Plot 16, Kawaesan Perindustrian Bayan Lepas
Phase IV

Mukim 12, Bayan Lepas,

11900 Pecnang

The consolidated hnancial statements of the Company as al and lor the [inancial year ended
31 March 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”) and the Group's interest in
associate,

The Company is principally engaged as an investment holding company, commission agent
and provision of management services. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
disclosed in Note & to the financial statements.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 July
2013,

1. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS™),
Intermational Financial Reporting Standards and the Companics Act, 1965 in
Malaysia, These are the Group's and the Company's first financial statements
prepared in accordance with MFRS and MFRS 1, First-time Adopiion of
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards has been applied.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contn)

1. Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued)

In the previous years, the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS"). The
financial impacts of transition to MFRS are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) but have not
been adopted by the Group and the Company :

MFRSs, [Interpretations and amendments effective for annwal periods

beginning on or after 1 July 2012

= Amendments o MFRS 101, Presenfation of Financial Statements -
Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective  for annual periods

beginning on or after [ January 2013

MFRS 10, Comsolidated Financial Statements

MFRS 11, Joint Arrangemenis*®

MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

MFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

MFRS 119, Employee Benefits (2011)

MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements (2011}

MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)

IC Interpretation 20, Siripping Cosis in the Production Phase of a Surface

Mine*

*  Amendments to MFRS 7, Financial Instrumenty; Disclosures - (Yfsetting
Financigl Asvets and Financial Liahilities

= Amendments to MFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of Malavsian Financial
Reporting Standards - Government Loans ™

*  Amendments to MFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of Malaysion Financial
Reporting Standards (Annual Improvements 20009-2001 Cyele)

*  Amendments to MFRS 101, Prexentation of Financial Stafements (Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle)

=  Amendments to MFRS 116, Property. Plant and Eguipment {Annual
Improvements 2000-2011 Cyclel

Amendments to MFRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentation (Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle)

= Amendments o MFRS 134, Imterim Financial Reporting  (Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle)

»  Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Stavements: Transition
Cruidance

*  Amendments 1o MFRS 11, Joint Arrangements; Transition Guidance™®

*  Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Inierests in Other Entilies:
Transition Guidance




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

1. Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Statement of compliance {continued)

MFRSs, Imterpretations and  amendments  effective  for amnwal periods

bsginning on or after I January 2004
Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidared Financial Statements: Investment
Entities

*  Amendments o MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in (hther Entities:
Imvesiment Entities

Amecndments to MFRS 127, Separare Fimancial Statements (2011):
frvestment Entities

«  Amendments to MFRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

MFERSs, Interpretations and  amendmenis  effeceive  for annual  periods

beginning on or after [ January 2015
«  MFRS 9, Financial fnstruments (2009)

«  MFRS 9, Financial mstrumenis (2010)
*  Amendments to MERS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Mandatory
Effective Date of MFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned standards,
amendments and interpretations:

=  from the annual period beginning on 1 April 2013 for those standards,
amendments or interpretations that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012 and 1 January 2013, except for those
indicated with “*" which are not applicable to the Group and to the
Company.

. from the annual period beginning on 1 Aprl 2014 for those standards.
smendments or interpretations  that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2014,

*  from the annual period beginning on 1 April 2015 for those standards,
amendments or interpretations that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015,

The imitial application of the abovementioned standards, amendments and
interprefations are not expected to have any material financial impacts to the
current and prnor penods financial statements of the Group and of the Company

upon their first adoption.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conto)

1. Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than
as disclosed in Note 2 to the Anancial statements,

(¢) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the
Company's functional currency. All financial information is presented in BEM
unless otherwise stated.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires
management to make judpements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these cstimates.

Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised im the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any affected future periods affiected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and criticzl judgements in
applying accounting policics that have significant cffect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements other than those disclosed in the following
noles :

«  MNote 5 - Valuation of investment propertics
»  MWote 8 - Goodwill on consolidation

2. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods
presented in these financial statements and in preparing the opening MFRS statements
of financial position of the Group and of the Company at 1 April 2011 (the transition
date to MFRS framework), unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation
i} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including unincorporated entities, controlled by the
Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Control exists when the Company has the ability
to exercise its power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i) Subsidiaries (continued)

Investments in subsidiarics arc measurcd in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less any impairment loszes, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investments includes
transaction costs,

(ii) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from
the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the
Group.

Acquisitions on or after I April 2011

For acquisitions on or after 1 April 2011, the Group measures the cost of
goodwill at the acquisition date as:

. the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

= the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree;
plus

. if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the
existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

= the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negalive, & bargain purchase gain 15 recogmsed
immediately in profit or loss.

For cach business combination, the Group clects whether it measures the
non-controlling interests in the acquirce either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets atl the acquisilion
date.

Transaction costs, other than thosc associated with the issue of debt or
equity securities, that the Group incurs in conmection with a business
combination are expensed as incurred,

Acquisitions before 1 April 2011

As part of its transition to MFRS, the Group elected net to restate those
business combinations that occurred before the date of transition to MFRSs,
i.e. 1 Aprl 2011. Goodwill arising from acquisitions before 1 April 2011 has
been camed forward from the prévious FRS fmmework as at the date of
transition.,




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jcontn)

2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)
fiii) Acguisitions of non-controlling interests

The Group treats all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not resultl in a loss of control as equity transactions between the Group and
its non-controlling interest holders. Any difference between the Group's
share of net assets before and after the chanpe, and any consideration
received or paid, 1s adjusted to or against Group reserves.

fiv) Loss of controf

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the asscts
and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other
components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising
on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any
interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair
vialue at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an
eguity-accounted imvestee or as an  availlable-for-sale financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained.

v} Associates

Associates are entities, including unincorporated entities, in which the
Group has significant inflluence, bul not control, over the fnancial and
operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statemnents using the equity method less any impairment losses, unless it is
classified as held for sale or distribution {or included in a disposal group that
15 classified as held for sale or distnbution). The cost of the investment
includes transaction cosis. The consolidated financial statements include the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates, after adjustments if any, to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until
the date that significant influence ceases.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds s interest in an associate, the
carrying amount of that interest including any long-term investments 1s
reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on
behalf of the associate,

When the Group ceases o have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that associate, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any retained interest
in the former associate at the date when significant influence is lost is re-
measured at fair value and this amount is regarded as the initial camying
amount of a financial asset
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrn)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)
fv) Associates {continued)

When the Group's interest in an associate decreascs but does not result ina
loss of significant influence, any retained interest i1s not re-measured. Any
gain or loss ansing from the decrease in inlerest 15 recognised in profit or
loss. Any gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are also reclassified proportionately to profit or loss.

Investments in associates are measured in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less any impaimment losses, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of the investment
includes transaction costs.

fvi) Non-controfling interests

MNon-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the eguity
in & subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the equity holders of
the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and
owners of the Company.,

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are
allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-
controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

fvii) Transactions efiminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrcalised income and
expenses ansing from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated fnancial statements,

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated
against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are climinated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{(b) Foreign currency
(i}  Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional
currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreign currencies al the end
of the reporting period are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
not retranslated at the end of the reporting date except for those that are
measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recogmised in profit
or loss, except for differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-
sale equity instruments or a financial instrument designated as a hedge of
currency risk, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(i} Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit
Malaysia

The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies
other than RM, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, excepl for goodwill and Fair value adjustments arising from
business combinations before 1 April 2011 which are treated as assets and
liabilities of the Company. The income and expenses of foreign operations
arc translated to RM at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR) in
equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then
the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference 15 allocated to
the non-controlling interests, When a foreign operation 1s disposed of such
that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the FCTR related 1o that foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the relevanl proportion of the cumulabive
amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group disposes
of only part of s investment in an associate that includes a foreign
operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency (continued)

(ii) Operafions denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgir
Mualaysia fcontinued)

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a forgign operation is neither planned nor
likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gaing and losses ansing
from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment
in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income,
and are presented in the FCTR in equity.

{c) Financial instruments

i) Imitial recognition and measuremens

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of
financizl position when, and only when, the Group or the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A lmancial instrument is recognised mitially, at its fair value plos, in the
case of a financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial instrument.

An embedded derivative 15 recognised separately from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative if, and only if] it is not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the host contract
1% not categorised at fair value through profit or loss. The host contract, in
the event an embedded derivative is recognised separately, 15 accounted for
n accordance with policy applicable o the nature of the host contract,

fif) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows;
Financial assery
fa) Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss
Fair value through profit or loss category compnises financial assets
that are held for trading, including derivatives (except for a derivative
that is a financial puarantee contract or a designated and effective

hedging instrument) or financial assets that are specifically designated
into this category upon initial recognition.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jconto)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢} Financial Instruments (continued)
fii) Financial instrument caregories and subseguent measurement (continued)
Financial assets {continued)
fa) Financial assets ai fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Derivatives that are linked o and must be seltled by delivery of
unguoted equity instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost.

Other financial assets categonsed as fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at their farr values with the gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss.

() Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are
not quoted in an active market.

Financial asscts catcgonised as loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through profit or
loss, are subject to review for impairment (see note 2(h)(i}).

Financial liahilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost other than
those categorised as fair value through profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that
are dervatives (except [or a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or
a designated and effective bedging instrument) or financial liabilities that are
specifically designated into this category upon initizl recognition.

Denivatives that are hnked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted
equily instruments whose fair values cannot be relisbly measured are
measured at cost

Other financial liabilites catcgorised as fair value through profit or loss arc

subsequently measured at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments (continued)

{ifi) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantec contract is a contract that requircs the issucr to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantes contracts are classified as deferred income and are
amortised 1o profit or loss using a straight-line method over the contractual
period or, when there is no specified coniractual period, recognised in profit
or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. When settlement of a financial
guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made.
If the camrying value of the financial guarantee contract is lower than the
obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to the obligation amount and
accounted for as a provision.

{ivi Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned,

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and
derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting. Trade date
accounting refers to:

{a) the recognition of an asset w be received and the liahility to pay for it
on the rade date, and

{b) derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on
disposal and the rccognmition of a receivable from the buver for
payment on the trade date.

v} Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the
finencial asset is transferred to another party without retaining control or
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the camryving amount and the sum of
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

I +++ e Corsorarion 31461




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢} Financial instruments (continued)
fv)  Derecognition {continued)

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On
derecognition of a fnancial liability, the difference between the carrving
amount of the financial liahility extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, i3 recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

i}  Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any
accumnulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are dircctly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset and any other costs directly attributable to brnging the asset to
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The
cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of matenals and direct
labour. For qualifying asscts, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

The cost of property, plant and equipment recogmised as a result of a
business combination is based on [air value al acquisition date. The fair
value of property is the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the partics had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion, The fair value of other
iterms of plant and equipment is based on the quoted market prices for
similar items when available and replacement cost when appropriate.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment hawve
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 1tems (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 1s
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carmying
amount of praperty, plant and equipment and is recognised net within “other
operating income” and “other operating expenses™ respectivelv in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recopnised in the carrving amount of the item 1f it 18 probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow
to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carmrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss,
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as inourred.

(iif) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset Jess its residual value,
Significant components of individual assets are assessed, and if a component
has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, then that

component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation 15 recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful hives of each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorier of the lease term
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will
obtain ownership by the end of the lcase term. Frechold land i3 not
depreciated. Property, plant and equipment under construction are nol
deprecialed until the assels are ready {or their intended use.

The depreciation rates for the current and comparative perniods are as

[ollows:

o
Buildings 15-2.5
Plant and machinery 10-25
Office equipment, fumiture and fittings B-15
Motor vehicles 20

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, and adjusted as appropnate.

(e¢) Leased assets

(i} Finance lease

Lecases in terms of which the Group or the Company assumes substantially
all the nisks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon
mitial recognition, the leased asset 18 measured at an amount equal to the
lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to imitial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jconrn)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{e) Leased assets (confinued)
iy Finance lease (continued)

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned
between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability.
The finance expense is allocated to cach period during the lease torm so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaming balance of
the hability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the
minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the
lease adjustment is confirmed.

Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as
property, plant and equipment.

(i) Operating leases

Leases, where the Group or the Company does not assume substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases and,
except for property interest held under operating lease, the leased assets are
not recognised on the statement of financial position. Property interest held
under an operating lease, which is held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both, is classified as investment property.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease, Lease incentives received arg
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense, over
the term of the lease.

Leaschold land which in substance is an operating lease is classified as
prepaid lease payments.

() Goodwill

(Goodwill arses on business combinations 15 measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, In respect of equity-accounted investees, the
carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and an impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the equity-
accounted imvestee. Goodwill 15 tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{g) Investment property
(i} Investment properiy carried al cost

Investment properties are properties which are owned to eam rental income
or for capital appreciation or for both. These include land (other than
prepaid lease payments) held for a currently undetermined future use.
Properties that are occupied by the companies in the Group are accounted
for as owner-occupied rather than as investment propertics,

Investment properties are measured imitially at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, consistent with the
accounting policy for property, plant and equipment as stated in accounting
policy Note 2(d).

Cost includes expenditure that 15 directly attnbutable to the acqusition of
the investment property.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated ussful lives of 50 years for buildings.

An investment property is derecognised on iis disposal, or when it is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carryving amount is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the ilem 15 derecognised.

(i) Reclassification toffrom invesiment property

When an item of property, plant and equipment 15 transferred to investment
property [ollowing a change in s use, any difference ansing at the date of
transfer between the carrying amount of the item immediately prior to
transfer and its fair value is recognised directly in equity as a revaleation of
property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in profit or loss. Upon
disposal of an investment properly, any surplus previously recorded in
equity is transferred to retained earnings: the transfer is not made through
profit or loss.

When the use of a property changes such that it 15 reclassified as property,

plant and equipment or inventories, is fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conro)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2) Investmeni property (continued)
(i) Determination of fair value

The Directors estimate the fair values of the Group's investment properties
based on the Directors’ own assessment by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

(h) Impairment
(i)  Financial assers

All financial assets {except for financial assets categonised as fair value
through profit or loss, investments in subsidiaries and investment in an
associate) are assessod at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment as a resull of one or more evenls having an impacl
on the estimated future cash flows of the assel. Losses expected as a resull
of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For an investment
in an cquity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair valuc
below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective
evidence exists, then the financial assel’s recoverable amount 15 estimated.

An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in
profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate, The carrying amount of the assel is
reduced through the use of an allowanece account.

An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that 15 carmed
al cost is recognised inm profit or loss and is measured as the difference

between the financial asset’s carying amount end the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed what
the carmrying amount would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal 1s recognised in profit or loss,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrn)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment (continued)
(ii) Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories) are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication ecxists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated cach
period atl the same time.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash-
generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing, cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are aggrepated so that the level at which
impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill
15 monitored for internal reporting purposes, The goodwill acquired in a
business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated (o
group of cash-penerating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating umit is the greater of
its value 1n use and 118 fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-gencrating unit.

An impairment loss is recogmsed il the carrying amount of an assel or 115
related cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losscs
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
{group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the cash-generating unit {groups of cash-generating units)
on a pro Fana basis,

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 15 not reversed. In respect ol
other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
the end of each reporting period for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer cxists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which
the reversals are recognised.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conro)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

The cost of inventories is measured based on first-in first-out principle and
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their cxisting
location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and manufactured
mmventones, cost includes an approprate share of production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale,

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is determined
based on the cstimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completiom and sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on
the effort required 1o complete and sell the inventories.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with
banks and highly liguid investments which have an msignificant nsk of changes
in fair value with onginal maturities of three months or less, and are used by the
Croup and the Company in the management of their shorl lerm commitments.
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
presented net of bank overdrafis and pledged deposits.

(k) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as & result of a past event, the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the lishility, The unwinding of the discount s recognised as
finance cost

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the
statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations.
whose cxistence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurmence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

BB asia rie corsorsiion sns |




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(I) Equity instruments

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are
not remeasured subsequently.

(i}  Issue expenses

Costs directly attnbutable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are
recogmsed as a deduction [rom equity.

(i) Chrdinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity,
(iif) Repurchase of share capital (treasury shares)

When share capital recognised as equity 18 repurchased, the amount of the
consideration paid, including directly attnbutable costs, net of any tax
effects, 15 recogmised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares that
are not suhsequently cancelled are classified as treasury shares in the
statement of changes in equity.

Where treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the cost of the
treasury shares is applied in the reduction of the share premium account or
distributable reserves, or both.

Where treasury shares arc sold or reissued subsequently, the difference
between the sales considerntion net of directly attnbutable costs and the
carrying amount of the treasury shares is recogmsed in equily, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the ransaction is presented in share premium.

(m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a gualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

Bomrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets.

The camtalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifving asset
commences when expenditure for the asset 18 being incurred, borrowing cosls are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ccases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jcontn)

2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Borrowing costs (continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending ther expenditure on qualifying assets 15 deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitzlisation.

{n) Revenue and other income
fi}  CGoods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
retums and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates. Revenue is
tecognised when persuasive evidence oxists, usually in the form of an
exccuted sales agreement, that the significant nisks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of peods
can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
rehigbly. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can
be measured rehably, then the discount is recogmsed as a reduction of
revenue as the sales are recognised.

fii) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives pranted are
recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the
lcase. Rental income from subleased property is recognised as other
Ncome.

(i) Dividend income
Dividend income 15 recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group's
ot the Company's right o receive payment is established, which in the case
of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

fiv) Commission income

When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal
in a transaction, the revenue recognised is the net amount of commission
made by the Group.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
{(n} Revenue and other income (continued)

vl Grovernment prants

Government grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there 18 reasonahble
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions associated with the grant and are then recognised in profit or loss
as other income on a systematic basis over the uscful life of the asset,

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in
profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are recognised.

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method in profit or loss except for interest income arising from temporary
investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
quahfying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy on bormowing costs.

(0) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred
tax are recogniscd in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combmalion or ilems recogmsed directly in equity or other comprehensive
income,

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
linancial years,

Dieferred tax is recognised using the Lability method. providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
statermnents of financial position and their tax bases, Deferred tax is not recognised
for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Dicferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2, Significant accounting policies (continued)

{0} Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised 1s measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
lo offset current tax liahilities and assets, and they relate 1o income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.

Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance, being tax
incentives that is not a tax base of an asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to
the extent that it 13 probable that the future taxable profits will be available against
the unutilised tax incentive can be ufilised.

(p) Employee benefits
(i) Shart-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual
bonuses, paid annual leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted
hasis and are expensed as the related service 15 provided.

A lhability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term
cash bonus if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Emplovee benefits (continued)
(i)  Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of share-based payment granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period that the emplovees unconditionally become entitled to the
awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that meet the
related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

The fair valug of employee share options is measured using a binomial
lattice model. Measurement inputs include share price on measurement date,
exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted
average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected duc to publicly
available mformation), weighted average expected life of the instruments
(based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour),
expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate (based on povernment
bonds). Service and non-market performance conditions attached to the
transactions arc not taken into account in determining fair value.

(q) Earnings per ordinary share

The Group presents basic and diluled earmings per share data for its ordinary
shares (“EPS™).

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atwibutable to ordinary
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary
sharcholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
adjusted for own shares held for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, which comprise share options granted to emplovees.

(r) Operating segments

An operating segment 15 a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by
the chief operating decision maker, which in this case is the Managing Director of
the Group, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is
available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jconrn)

3. Property, plant and equipment - Group (continued)
Security
Certain frechold land and buildings of the Group with carrying amount of RM Nil
(31.3.2012 : RM17.635,356; 1.4.2011 : RM15.913.967) were pledged to a financial
institution as security for borrowings as disclosed in Mote 17 to the financial statcments,
Assets under finance lease arrangement
The Group leases production plant and equipment amounting to RM Nil (31.3.2012 :

EM990,897; 1.4.2011 : RM1.256,781) under finance lease with expiry dates ranging
from 2011 to 2013.

4. Prepaid lease payments - Group

Unexpired
period less
than 50
YEATS
RM
Cost
At 1 April 2011/31 March 2012/31 March 2013 2,294.116
Amortisation
At ]l April 2011 576, TET
Amortisation for the year 38,875
AL 31 Mareh 2012/1 April 2012 615,662
Amaortisation for the year 35877
At 31 March 2013 654 539
Carryving amounits
At 1 Aprl 2011 1,717,329
At 31 March 2002/1 Aprl 2012 ~1,678454
At 3] March 2013 1,639,577
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5. Investment properties - Group

Buildings RM
Cost

At 1 April 2011/31 March 2012/31 March 2013 __2,529.874
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 Apnil 2011 570,108
Depreciation for the year 50,598
At 31 March 2012/1 April 2012 620,706
Depreciation for the year 50,598
At 31 March 2013 671,304
Carrying amounts

At 1 April 2011 1,959,766
At 31 March 2012/1 April 2012 1,909,168
At 31 March 2013 1,858,570

The fair value of investment propertics based on the Directors” own assessment by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties was RM2.75
million (31.3.2012 : RM2.75 million; 1.4.2011 : RM2.75 million).

Investment properties comprise factory building and commercial properties that are
leased to third party. The leases are entered into for a period of 3 years. Subsequent
rencwals are to be negotiated with the lessce.

The fellowing are recognised in the profit or loss in respect of investment properties :

2013 2012
RM RM
Rental income 229,825 222,050
Direct operating expenses
- Income generating investment properties 15,856 | 5,856




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conro)

6. Investments in subsidiaries - Company

31.3.2013 3132012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Unguoted shares, at cost 46,152,545 46,152,545 21,352,545
Add: Share-based payment allocated to
subsidiaries 2,608,396 2,363,350 1,900,164

48,760,941 48,515,895 23,252,709

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows :

Name of Country of
subsidiary Effective ownership interest  incorporation Principal activities
31.3.2013 31.3.20012 1.4.2011

Asia File Products  100% 100%  100% Malaysia  Manufacture and sale of

Sdn. Bhd. statiooery products
Sin Chuan 1 0M0% 1% 1008 Malaysia  Trading of stationery
Marketing Sdn. products
Bhd,
Lim & Khoo Sdn. 1% 1 00% 100%% Malayvsia Investment holding
Bhd.
Farmioss [ W% | W% 1005 Malaysia Dormint
Technology
Sdn. Bhd.
ABBA Marketing ~ 100%  100%  100%  Malaysis  Trading of stationery
Sdn. Bhd. products, graphic
designing and desktop
publishing
AFP Composite 100% 100% 100% Malaysia  Manufacture and supply of
Sdn, Bhd, plastic related products
Premicr T5% T5% 75% United Import and distribution of
Stationery Kingdom stationery products
Limited *
Premier 100%: 100%: R Singapore  Trading of stationery
Stationery Pie. products
Ltd. *
Higher Kings Mill  100% 100% - United Manufacture and sale of
Limited * Kingdom coloured paper and
boards for filing,
educationzl and other
specialty markets,
Subsidiary of Asia File Producis Sdn, Bhd,
Plastoreg Smidi 1% L00%s 100%  Germany Munufacture and
GmbH* distribution of stationery
products

*  Not audited by KPMG




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

S TATEMENTS (contn)

4

Investment in an associate

Group

At cost

Quoted shares in Malavsia

Share of post acquisition reserves

and results

Market value of guoted shares

Company

At cost

Quoted shares in Malaysia

Market value of guoted shares

31.3.213 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
46,923,664 46,602,667 46,351,896
71,058,780 69,707,571 61,968,462
117,982,444 116310238 108,320,358
43 265,000 56,925,000 A8 B2R.000
5073921 4,752,924 4,502,153
4,338,000 5,384,000 4,419,000

Details of the associate are as follows :

Name of
associate Effective ownership interest  incorporation
3132013 3132012 142011
o Yo Yo
Muda 20,06 20.06 20,12 Malaysia
Holdings
Berhad

Country of Principal Financial

Summary of financial information on the associate :

313213

Muda Holdings Berhad
3132012

Muda Holdings Berhad
L4.2011

Muda Holdings Berhad

activity

year end

Investment k]|

holding December

Profit Total Total
Revenue after tax AsSCs liabilities
RM'000 RM (MM RM (WM RMDO0
1,081,404 23,596 1,228 821 613,117
1,112,320 51,951 1,238,287 621,698
979,900 ) 44311 ) 1,142,330 ) 363,939

There is no share of associated companies” contingent liabilities incurred jointly with

other investors.
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8. Goodwill on consolidation - Group

31.3.2m3 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Cioedwill on consolidation 30,234,456 30,234,456 30,234,456

Gioodwill has been allocated to the Group's cash-generating units {“CGU™) identified in
the foreign subsidiary company’s operations acquired in the previous year. The
agpregate carrving amount of goodwill allocated was RM30.2 million (31.3.2012:
RM30.2 million; 1.4.2011: RM30.2 million).

Goodwill is allocated to Group’s CGU expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition, For annual impairment testing purpose, the recoverable amount of the CGU
18 based on their value-in-use. The value in use calculations apply a discounted cash
Now model using cash flow projections based on the financial forecast. The key
assumptions for the computation of value-in-use include the discount rates and growth
rates applied of approximately 10%. Discouni rates used are based on the pre-tax
weighted average cost of capital plus an appropriate risk premium, where applicable, at
the assecssment of the respective CGL. Cash flow projections are based on five yeams
financial budgets.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of the goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount
of the CGLU. Based on this review, there is no evidence of impairment on the Group's

goodwill,

9. Trade and other receivables

MNote 31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Group
Trade
Trade receivables 9.1 56,182,991 59,635,035 42,487,392
MNon-trade
Other receivables 2,582,844 2,285.920 2,567,147
Deposits 346,926 643,253 773,374
Prepayments 2,389,603 1,127,466 E00514
Derivative financial assets 9.2 - - H6aT7. 486
3,319,373 4,056,639 4,808,921
61,502,364 63,691,674 47,296,313
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9. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Note  31.3.2013 31.3.2002 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Company
MNon-trade
Amount due from
subsidiaries 93 137,769,119 128410234 146,171,452
Other receivables TH, 11 127,264 77,898

137,847,300 128,537,498 146,249,150

8.1 Trade receivables

The Group’s normal credit terms for trade receivables range from 30 to 90 days
(31.3.2012 ; 30 to 90 days; 1.4.2011 : 30 to 90 days).

Included in trade receivables are amounts due from companies in which a Director
and his family members collectively have controlling interests of RM127,057
(31.3.2012 : RM143,514; 1.4.2011 ;: RM139,369), respectively which are subject
to the normal credit terms.

9.2  Derivative financial assets

This represented the fair value gain on forward currency contracts at the end of the
reporting period.

8.3  Amount due from subsidiaries

The current non-trade receivables due from subsidianies are unsecured, intcrest-
free and repayable on demand other than an amount of RM6,846, 885 (31.3.2012:
RM7,923 567; 1.4.2011: Nil) due from a subsidiary which carries interest at 4.5%
(31.3.2012: 4.5%; 1.4.2011: Nil) per annum.

10, Inventories - Group

31.3.2013 313.2012 1.4.2011
M RM RM
Raw materials 53,117,745 51,754,295 43,460,738
Work-in-progress 7,867,129 3,633,996 5,198,077
Manufactured mventones 40,169,473 39,425,494 22,537 953

101,154,347 94,813,785 71,196,768
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11. Cash and cash equivalents

3132013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RrM
Group
Short term deposits with licensed
banks 21,542,872 20,051,948 60,363,530
Cash and bank balances 20,805,398 37,050,560 20499117
42348270 57,142,508 80,862,647
Company
Short term deposits with licensed
banks 113,913 3,531,107 4,537,570
Cash and bank balances 47,842 268,284 40,060
161,755 3,799,391 4,577,630
12. Share capital - Group/Company
3132013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
SNumber Number Mumber
of of aof
shares shares shares
BA 000 R B0 RN BAO00 TRCILTY
Ordinary shares of
BEMI each
Authonised S0, 00 SO, HEH SO0 00 SO0 S0CH 00 SO0, 0040
2013 2012
Number of Number of
RM shares RM shares
Issued and fully paid :
Balance at | April 116,025,730 116,025,730 115506930 115,506,930
Issued under ESOS,
for cash at :
- RM3.14 per share 1 66,600 166,600 507,400 507,400
- RM4.11 per share - . 2,000 2,000
- RM3.10 per share 54,500 54,500 G.A00 9400
221,100 221,100 518,800 518,800
Balance at 31 March 116,246,830 116,246,830 116,025,730 116,025,730
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13. Treasury shares - Group/Company

The shareholders of the Company, by a special resolution passed at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 25 September 2001 approved the Company’s plan Lo purchase
its own shares,

During the financial vear, the Company repurchased 200 (31.3.2012 ; 96,900; 1.4.2011
- 30,6007 of its issued share capital from the open market at an average price of RM3.60
(31.3.2012 : RM3.49; 1.4.2011 : RM4.55) per share. The total consideration paid was
RM77R (31.3.2012 : RM33R8,651; 1.4.2011 : RM139358) including transaction costs of
FM58 (311.3.2012 : BM931; 1.42011 : RM446). The repurchase transactions were
financed by internally generated funds. The shares repurchased are retained as treasury
shares,

Asg at 31 March 2013, a tota] of 399800 (31.3.2012 : 390.600; 1.4.2011 : 302,700)
ordinary shares were held as treasury shares. The number of outstanding ordinary
shares of RM1 each in issue and fully paid-up after deducting the treasury shares held is
115,847,030 (31.3.2012 : 115,626,130; 1.4.2011 ; 115,204,230). Treasury shares held
have no rights to voting, dividends and participation in other distribution,

14. Reserves

31.3.2013 3132012 1.4.2011
EM EM EM
Group
Non-distributable :
Translation reserve (4,657.468) (2.370.759)
Share premium on ordinary shares
Balance at 1 April 17,678,517 16,245,612 14,509,978
Issue of shares at ;
- RM3.14 per share 356,524 1,085,836 1,330,652
- RM4.11 per share : 6,220 I8 ETS
- RM3.10 per share 114,450 19,740 -
Share options exercised 115,755 231,629 287,039
Associate 66,987 B9, 480 TEA6R
Balance at 31 March 18,332,233 17,678,517 16,245,612
Share options reserve 2,843,535 2,320,811 1,431,259
Distributahble :
Retained earnings 254,126,202 237,147,019 212,086,968
270,644 502  254.775,58% 229 763 839
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14. Reserves (continued)

31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Company
Non-distributable :
Share premium on ordinary shares
Balance at 1 Apnl 17.429.971 16,086,546 14,429 380
Issue of shares at
- RM3.14 per share 356,524 1,085,836 1,330,652
- RM4.11 per share - 6,220 38.B75
- RM3.10 per share 114,450 19,740 -
Share options exercised 115,755 231,629 287639
Balance at 21 March 18,016,700 17.429 671 16,086,546
Share options reserve 2,841,633 2,260,747 1,308,800
Distributable :
Retained eamings 20,964 957 20,084,702 15,312,604
41,823.290 39775420 32,707,950
Movements of reserves are shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
15. Deferred tax liabilities - Group
Recognised deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities are attnibutable 1o the following
31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
M BRM RM
Property, plant and equipment
- revaluation 879 464 879 464 £79.464
- capital allowances 5,113,349 4,953,764 5,274,464
- fair valuc adjustment 1,820,474 1,820,474 1,820,474
Provisions (430,000) (349,639) (144,%08)
7.383.287 7.304,063 7.829.494
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jconrn)

15. Deferred tax liabilities - Group (continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets

No deferred tax asset has been recognised for the following items :

31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Tax losses carry-forward and
deductible temporary differences of
a foreign subsidiary 286,000 563,000 895,000

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of the tax losses camy -forward
and deductible temporary differences because it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the subsidiary can utilise the benefits there from.

16. Trade and other payables

MNote 31.3.2013 31.3.2012 L4.2011
RrM EM KM
Group
Trade
Trade payables 16.1 19,065,980 26,647 507 26,485,330
Mon-trade
Other payables 5,091,321 7,166,540 4,830 400
Accrued expenses 10479371 9,630,883 4 708,782
15,570,692 16,797,423 . 9,539,182 |
34,636,672 43,444,9% 36024512
Company
Mon-trade

Amount due 1o subsidiaries 162 25976034  2205994] 20,624,543
Orther payables 109,743 68,714 518,903
Accrued expenses 269,150 275,998 259 300

26,354927 22404653 21402746
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

16. Trade and other payables (continued)
I6. 1 Trade payables
The Group’s normal credit terms for rade payables range from 30 w 90 days

(31.3.2012 : 30 to 90 days; 1.4.2011 : 30 to 90 days). The trade payables include
trade payables due to associates of RMS521,061 (31.3.2012: RM495,243; 1.4.2011

: RM612,547) which are subject to the normal credit terms.

I68.2 Amount due to subsidiaries

The non-trade payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

repayahle on demand.

17. Bank borrowings - Group

Note 31.3.2013 3132012 1.4.2011
BM EM EM
Current
Secured
Term loans - 1,360,000 1,423 333
Unsecured
Term loans 2,250,000 3,000,000 7,000,000
Foreign currency trade loans 15,717,765 16,442 333 16,550 446
Bank overdralis 09,497 93,700 99,995
Finance lease liabilities 17.3 - 119,567 204,733
18,067,262 21,017,600  253278,507
Mon-current
Secured
Term loans - 401 1,432,126
Linsecured
Term loans - 2,250,000 5,250,000
Finance lease liabilities 17.3 - - 124,971
- 2,258 401 &, 807,097

171 Interesr rafes

The bank overdrafts are subject to interest at 1.75% (31.3.2012 : 1.75%;
1.4.2011 : 1,75%) per annum above lenders’ base lending rates,

The foreign currency trade loans are denominated in US Dollar and Hong Kong
Dollar and are subject to imterest at 0.50% (31.3.2012 : 0.50%; 1.4.2011 :
0.50%) per annum above the bank’s cost of funds.
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17. Bank borrowings - Group (continued)

17.1  Interest rates (continued)

The secured term loans, which are denominated in Euro, are subject to interest
at 1,05% (31.3.2012: 1.05%; 1.4.2011 : 1,05%) per annum over Euro Interbank
Offered Rate (“EURIBOR™). The unsecured term loans, which are denominated
in Ringgit Malaysia, are subject to interest at 0.50% (31.3.2012 : 0.50%;
1.4.2011 : 0.50%) per annum over Kuala Lumpur Interbank Offcrod Rate
{(*KLIBOR™),

The finance lease liabilities in the previous year were subject to interest rates
ranging from 5.27% to 6.00% (1.4.2011 : 53.27% to 6.00%) per annum,

I7.2  Securities

The term loans were secured by certain frechold land and buildings of the
Ciroup (Note 3).

17.3  Finance lease liabilities

Present
Future valoe of
minimum minimum
lease lease
payment Interest payment
RM RM EM
31.3.2013
Less than one year - - -
Between one and five years - - -
31.3.202
Less than one year 121,540 2,373 115,567
Between one and five years - - -
121,940 2,373 119,567
1.4.2011
Less than one year 216,627 11,894 204,733
Between one and five years 127454 2483 124,971
344,081 14,377 329,704
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18. Employee benefits - Group/Company
Nhare Option Plan

The Group offers vested share options over ordinary shares to full time executive
Directors and employees who have been in the employment of the Group for a
continuous period of at least six (6) months. The number and weighted average excrcise
price of share options are as follows

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of  exercise  Number of

price options price options

2013 2013 2012 2012

RM RM
Outstanding at 1 April 3.4 1,742,970 314 2,297,570
Cutstanding at 1 April 4.11 787,000 4.11 822,200
Qutstanding at | April 300 3,628,600 - -
Ciranted during the year - - 3.10 3,674,000
Exercised during the year 3.14 (166,600 3.14 (507,400)
Exercised during the year 4.11 : 4.11 (2,000)
Exercised during the year 3.10 (54,500 310 (9.400)
Total exercised during the year (221,100) (518,800)
Lapsed due to resignation 3.14 (18,800) 314 (47.200)
Lapsed due to resignation 411 . 4,11 (33,200)
Lapsed due to resignation 310 (11500073 3.10 (36,000)
Total lapsed during the year (133,800) (116,400)
Outstanding at 31 March 3.25 5,803,670 324 6,158,570
Exercisable at 31 March 3,161,420 2,884,370

The outstanding options as at 31 March 2013 have exercise prices of RM3.14, RM4.11
and RM3,10 respectively, The weighted average option life is 4 years,

Agia File Corporatian Mhd




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jconto)

18. Employee benefits - Group/Company (continued)
The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is based on the
fair value of share options granted, measured using a hinomial lattice model, with the
following inputs :

Directors Executives Others

RM BEM RM
31.3.2013
Fair value of share options and
assumptions
Fair value at grant date
- 27.4.2007 0.44 .44 0.44
- 20.4.2009 0,600 060 0,60
- 3102011 0.77 0.77 0.77
31.3.2012
Fair value of share options and
assumptions
Fair value at grant date
- 27.4.2007 0.44 0.44 0.44
- 20.4.2009 0.60 (160 0.60
- 3102011 0.77 0.7y 0.77
1.4.2011
Fair value of share options and
assumptions
Fair value at grant date
- 27.4.2007 0.44 .44 0.44
- 20.4.2009 0.60 (.60 0.60
Exercisc price RM3.14, RM4.11 and RM3.10
Expected volatility (weighted average 19.42%, 22.04% and 31.50%
volatility)
Option life {expected weighted average
life) 310 5 years
Expected dividends 5.50% to 6.46%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Malaysian
government bonds) 2 82% and 3.45%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

18. Employee benefits - Group/Company (continued)

Value of employee services received for issue of share options

Recognised as stall cost
in profit or loss
(Note 22)

Additions fo investment
in subsidiaries

19, Revenue

Invinced value of goods
sold less discounts
and returns

Gross dividends
receivable

- subsidiaries
- associate

Commission income

Management foes -
subsidianes

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
720,014 1,217,185 474 968 753,999
- - 245,046 463,186
720,014 1217185 720,014 1,217,185
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
EM RM RM M
323,301,158 276,239,735 - .
- - 25749000 29,000,000
- - 147,753 136,388
83,214 83,017 43,214 83,017
- - 2,193,060 2,058,000
323,384 372 276,322 752 28173027 31277405
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20. Profit before tax

Profit before tax is armived at

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
After charzing :
Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit
- KPMG Malaysia
- Current year R00,000 65,000 23,000 12,000
- Prior vear 7000 . 3.000 .
- (ther auditors 193,153 172,962 - -
Mon-audit fees
- KPMUG Malaysia 12,843 6,004 12,843 &, 000
- Affiliates of KPMG 34,600 20,000 34,600 20,000
Bad debts written off 8459 17,367 . .
Consultancy fec paid to a
company in which a
Director of a subsidiary
has a substantial
financial interest 271532 207,910
Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments (Note 4) 38877 38,875 - -
Depreciation
- property, plant and
equipment (Note 3) 10,852,626 9,305 898
- investment propertics
(Note 5) 50,598 50,598 - -
Rental of premises 1,116,727 1,089,714 - -
Loss on foreign exchange
- realised - . . 37,197
- unrealised 2.B68.345 730,547 292,391 24,524
Interest expense 406,901 720,635 18 -
Impairment loss on
doubtful trade
receivables (net) 81,974 72,357
and after crediting :
Interest income 4597 464 B50,612 550,895 40,956
Giain on disposal of plant
and equipment 10,316 141,579 - -
Rental income 229 8325 222,050 - -
(Gain on foreign cxchange
- realised 244818 1,321,887 33,145 -

82 asia Fito Corsararion vs |




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

21. Key management personnel compensations

The key management personnel compensations are as follows :

Group Company
013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM M RM
Dhrectors of the
Company
- Fees 250,000 239,000 242,000 242,000
- Remuneration 944 430 07,947 944,430 Q07,947
Other Directors
- Fees 39 440 38,840 - -
- Remuneration 1.897.912 1,440,130 - -

3,140,782 2,643,917 1,186,430 1,149,947

There are no other key management personnel apart from the Directors of the Company
and certain Directors of the Group having authority and respensibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly.

The estimated monetary value of benefits received by Directors of the Company
otherwise than in cash amounted to RMS6,000 (2012 : RM39 879,

22. Employee information

Ciroup Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM M RM RM
StafT costs 52272183 30,275,991 1,751,870 1,674,817
Share-based payments 720,014 1,217,185 474 968 753,999

52992197  31.493.176 2,226,838 2,428 816

Included in staff costs of the Group @nd of the Company is an amount of REM3,706,018
(2012 : RM2,414,144) and RM190,857 (2012 : RM180,329) respectively representing
contributions made o the statutory pension funds.
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23. Income tax expense

Recognised in profit or loss
Group Company
I3 2012 2013 2012
RrM RM EM EM
Current tax expense
Malaysian - current 11,487,000 6,237,000 43,000 37,000
- prior year (7T31,853) (14,642) 6,860 (3,787)
Owerseas - current 2,042 315 2,528,053 34,912 -
- prior year (7,323) 236,763 - -
Total current tax 12,790,139 8,987,174 84,772 33,213
Deferred tax expense
Malaysian - current (T82,651) (694,115) - -
- prior year 181,854 (60,759) - -
Overseas - current 696,258 249,292 = -
Total deferred tax 935,461 (3035,582) - -
Total income tax expense 12,885,600 B.481.592 84,772 33.213

Reconciliation of effective income tax expense

Group Company
2013 22 2013 2012
EM RM RM RM
Profit before tax 56,126,005 57,204,690 25 842 785 28,468 358
Less : share of results
of equity
accounted

associates (3.834,000) (£,981,320) - =

'§2792005 48223370 2 25842785 28,468 358

94 asia Fito Corsararion 0o |




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

23. Income tax expense (continued)

Reconciliation of effective income tax expense (continued)

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BM RM BEM Ry

Tax at Malaysian

tax rate of 25% 13,073,001 12,055,843 6,460,696 7,117,050
Effect of different tax

rates in foreign

Jurisdictions 187,236 86,999 (52,368) -
Effect of utilisation

of tax losses not

previously

recognised (277,195) (225,243) - -
Non-deductible

expenses 1,116,116 338,797 287,228 212,130
Income not subject to

fax (89.,073) (63,280 = -
Tax exempt income {310,444) (114,305) (6,626,599) (7,294,336)
Tax incentives {237,905) (3,749,809) - -
Others (18,814} (8,772) B.955 2,116
{Over)/Under

provided in prior

vear (557,322) 161,362 fa, B0 (3,787
Income tax expense 12,885 600 B481,592 4,772 33,213

24. Earnings per ordinary share - Group
Basic earnings per ordinary share

The calculation of basic carmings per ordinary share is based on the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of RM42,891,330 (2012 ; RM48,723,098)
and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 115,753,080 (2012 :
115,508,449) calculated as follows :

2013 2012
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 116,025,730 115,506,930
Effect of shares issued during the year 127,066 360,620
Effect of treasury shares held (399,716} (359,101)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at
31 March 115,753,080 115,508,449
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24. Earnings per ordinary share - Group (continued)
Diluted earnings per ordinary share

The calculation of diluted camings per ordinary share is based on the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of RM42,891 330 (2012 : RM48,723,098)
and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the
effiects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows :

2013 2012
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at
31 March 15,753,080 115,508 449
Effect of dilution of unexercised share options 625,497 934 445
Weighted average number ol ordinary shares
(diluted) at 31 March 116,378,577 116,442 894

25. Dividends

Dividends recognised in the current and previous year by the Company are as follows :

Sen per Total
share amount Date of payment

2013 EM
2012 final single-tier dividend of

13.5% on 115,802,730 ordinary

shares of RM1 each 13.50 15,633,369 27 December 2012
Interim single-tier dividend of 8%

on 115,847,030 ordinary shares

of RM1 each 8.00 9,267,762 28 May 2013

24,901,131

2012
2011 final single-tier dividend of

12.5% on 115,572,530 ordinary

shares of RM1 each 12.50 14,446,566 27 December 2011
Interim single-tier dividend of 8%

on 115,626,130 ordinary sharcs

of RM1 each .00 9,250,090 29 May 2012

23,696,656

U T———
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25, Dividends (continued)

A final single tier dividend of 13.5% amounting to RM15,633,369 proposed in the last
financial year and approved by the members in the last Annual General Meeting was
paid on 27 December 2012 and accordingly, this amount has been appropriated from
the retained carnings in this financial vear.

Al the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final single-tier dividend of 12.5% in
respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2013 will be proposed for members’
approval. These financial statements do not reflect this final dividend which, when
approved by the members, will be accounted for as an appropriation of retained
camings from sharcholders® funds in the Ainancial year ending 31 March 2014,

26. Related parties - Group/Company

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group or the Company if the Group or the Company has the ability, direcily or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financiel and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company
and the party are subject 1o common control or common significant influence, Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

The Group has related party relationships with the followmg:

i) Subsidiaries and associztes of the Company as disclosed in the financial statements.

it) Companies in which a Director, Mr. Lim Soon Huat and his close family members
collectively have controlling interests - Asia Educational Supplics Sdn. Bhd.

(*AESSB") and Khyam Seng Printing Sdn. Bhd. ("KSPSB™).

iii) Company in which a Director, Mr. Lim Soon Huat has substantial financial interests
- Dynamic Office Sdn. Bhd. ("DOSB™)

i) Company in which a Director of a subsidiary, Mr. R.C. Martin, has substantial
[inancial interests - Chnstopher Martin Lid.

v} Key management personnel of the Group
Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authonty and
responsibility [or planming, directing and controlling the activities ol the Group

either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel include all the
Directors of the Company and certain Directors of the Group.
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26. Related parties - Group/Company (continued)

The significant related party transactions of the Group and the Company, other than key
managemenl personnel compensations, are as follows :

a) Transactions entered into between the Company and its subsidiaries

Transactions amount for the year

ended 31 March
2013 2012
RM RM
- Dividend income received 25,749,000 29,000,000
- Management fee receivable 2,193,060 2,058,000

b) Transactions entered into by the subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business with
a direct associate

Transactions amount for the vear
ended 31 March

2013 2012
RM RM
- Purchases 2,457,118 3,145,526

¢) Transactions entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business with
companies in which a Director and his close family members collectively have
controlling interests are as follows :

Transactions amount for the year

ended 31 March
2013 2012
RM BM
Sales - AESSB 238,000 271,000
- KSPSRH 17,000 29000
- DOSE 4,000 2,000
Purchases - AESSB 26,000 27,000
- KSPSH a0 -
- DOSE T1, 000 44 00
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26. Related parties - Group/Company (continued)
d) Transactions with key management personnel :

Key management personnel compensations are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial
statements.

The aggregate amount of transactions rclating to key management personnel and
entity over which they have control or significant influence were as follows :

Transactions amount for the vear
ended 31 March

2013 2012
Group RM RM
Consultancy fee paid to 8 company in which a
Director of a subsidiary has substantial
financial interest 277,532 207,910
Rental paid 1o
- a Director of a subsidiary 9 600 S A0

The above transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business and
have been established under negotiated terms.

Non-trade balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes Y and 16 to the
financizl statcments.

27. Capital commitment - Group

2013 2012
RM RM
Property, plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for . 4,419,959

28. Lease commitment - Group

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows -
2013 2012
RM 000 RMD00
Less than 1 vear 1.169 1.616
Between 1 and 5 years 1,871 3,548

The Group leases properties and equipment under operating lease amangements. The
leases run {or perods ranging from one to five years and do not mclude contingent
remials,
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29, Contingent liabilities - Company
1) Corporate puarantee - Unsecured

The Company has given corporate guarantees to certain financial institutions for
banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries for RM76,450,000 (31.3.2012 :
RM76,450,000; 1.4.2012 : RM96,450,000) of which RM2,349,497 (31.3.2012 :
RMS5,345,700; 1.4.20012 : RM12,349,995) was utilised at the end of the reporting
period,

i) The Company has undertaken to provide finamcial support to one of its
subsidiaries to enable it to continue operating as a going coOnNcemnm.

i) The Company has given corporate guarantee of RM9, 780,000 to a supphier of its
subsidiary, Higher Kings Mill Limited (formerly known as Trissi Brissi Limited).

30. Operating segments - Group

The Group reportable segment mainly consists of manufacturing and trading of
stationery products, coloured paper and boards.

Reportable segment has not been prepared as all the Group’s revenue, operaling prolit,
assels employed, liabilities, capital expenditure, depreciation and amortisation and non
cash expenses are mainly confined to one business segment.

Operating  segments are components in which separate financial imformation s
available that 15 evaluated regularly by the Managing Director in deciding how 1o
allocate resources and in assessing performance of the Group. The Group has identified
the business of manufacturing and trading of stationery products. coloured paper and
boards as its sole operating segment.

Perlormance 15 measured based on revenue denved [rom the vanous products sold and
consolidated profit before income tax of the Group as included in the internal
management reporis that are reviewed by the Managing Director, who is the Group's
chief operating decision maker. The Group's segment assets and liabilities, as disclosed
in the Group's statement of financial position, are also reviewed regularly by the
Managing Director.
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30. Operating segments - Group (continued)
Geographical information

In presenting peographical information, segment revenue is based on geopraphical
location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the
asscts, The amounts of non-current asscts do not include financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Revenue MNon-current assets
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Malaysia 40,001, 5077 38,603,753 56,670,782 53,296,481
Asia (excluding
Malaysia} 7.832,384 8,523,726 4,020 4,069
Europe 228,337,613 187,777,425 79,042,634 69,710,221
America 30,948 489 28,840,307 - -
Others 16,264,379 12,577,541 - -

Consolidated 323,384,372 276,322,752 135,717,436 123,010,771

31. Financial instruments
31.1 Categories of financial instruments

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as
follows:

{a) Loans and receivables (L&R);
(h) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
- Held for trading (HFT); and
(c) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (FL).

Carrving
amount L&R FYTPL

Group RM RM RM
Financial assets
31.3.2013
Trade and other receivables,

including derivatives 58,765,835 58,765,835 -
Cash and cash equivalents 42,348,270 42 348270 -

101,114,105 101,114,105 -
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

31.1 Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Carrying
amount L&R F¥YTPL
Group (continued) M M M
Financial assets (continued)
3lazmz
Trade and other receivables,
ingluding dernvatives 61,920,955 61,920,955 -
Cash and cash equivalents 57,142,508 57,142,508 -
119,063,463 119,063,463 -
1.4.2011
Trade and other receivables,
including denvatives 45,722,025 45,054,539 H67T 486
Cash and cash equivalents 80,862,647 R0.B62,647 -
126,584,672 125,917,186 BOT ARG
Company
Financial assets
31323
Trade and other receivables,
including derivatives 137,847,300 137,847,300 -
Cash and cash equivalents 161,755 161,755 -
138,009,055 138,009,055 -
3l.3.2012
Trade and other receivables,
including derivatives 128,537 498 128,537 408 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,799,391 3,799,301 -
132,336,880 132,336, 589 -
1.4.2011
Trade and other receivables,
including derivatives 146,249,350 146,249,350
Cash and cash equivalents 4,577,630 4,577,630 -
150,826,980 150,826, 980 -
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

31.1 Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Carrying
amount FL
RM RM
Group
Financial linbilities
31.3.2013
Bank bortowings (1B,067,262)  (18,067,262)
Trade and other payables (34,636,672)  (34,636,672)
(52,703,934)  (52,703,934)
31.3.2012
Bank borrowings (23,276,001)  (23,276,001)
Trade and other payables (43,444,930)  (43,444,930)
(66,720931)  (66,720,931)
1.4.2011
Bank borrowings (32,085,604) (32,085,604}
Trade and other payables (36,024,512}  (36,024,512)
(68,110,116)  (68,110,116)
Company
Financial liabilities
31.3.2013
Trade and other payables (26,354,927)  (26,354,927)
31.3.2012
Trade and other payables (22,404,653) (22,404,653)
1.4.2011
Trade and other pavables (21,402,746) (21,402,746)
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

31.2 Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments

Group
2013 2012
BM EM
Met (loss)/gain arising on :
Fair value through profit or loss :

- held for trading - (139,044)
Loans and receivables (2,216,496) 1,352,228
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (406,%01) (720,635)

(2,623,397) 497 549
Company
2013 2012
RM RM
Net gain/(loss) arising on :

Loans and receivables 291,649 {20,765)

Financial liabilitics measured at amortised cost (18) -
291,631 (20,765)

31.3 Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial
instrurments:

*  Credit nsk

= Ligquidity risk

= Market nsk
31.4 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty
to & financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group's
exposure to credit sk anses pnneipally from its receivables from customers. The
Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from advances to subsidiaries
and financial puarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries.

Heceivables
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit nsk is

monitored on an ongoing basis. Normally credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit over a cerlain amount.
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31. Financial instruments (continued)
31.4 Credit risk (continued)
Receivables (continued)
Exposure to credit vivk, credit guality and collateral

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising
from receivables is represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of
financial position.

Management has taken reasonable steps Lo ensure that receivables thal are neither
past due nor impaired are measured at their realisable values. A significant portion
of these receivables are regular customers that have been transacting with the
Group. The Group uscs ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the
receivables. Any receivables having significant balances past due more than 90
days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are monitored individually,

Impairment losses

The ageing of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period was ;

Group RM
3132013

Not past due 41 468,671
Past due 1 - 30 days 12,670,718
Past due 31 - 60 days 1,478,958
Past due 61 - 90 days 445,375
Past due more than 90 days 524,039
(iross trade receivables 56,587,761
Individually impaired (121,392)
Collectively impaired (283,378)
Net trade receivables 56,182,991
31.3.2012

Not past due 42871272
Past due 1 - 30 days 12,701,772
Past due 31 - 60 days 3,952,154
Past duc 61 - 90 days 344252
Past due more than 90 days 87,564
Gross trade receivables 59.957.014
Individually impaired (182,05%)
Collectively impaired (139.921)
Met trade receivables 59,635,035
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

31.4 Credit risk (continued)

Recelvables (continued)

Group RM
1.4.2011

Not past due 34,042 819
Past due 1 - 30 days 7,724,224
Past due 31 - 60 days 376,009
Past due 61 - 90 days 264,764
Past due more than 90 days 341,750
Gross trade receivables 42,749 566
Individually impaired (164,732)
Collectively impaired (97,442
Met trade receivables 42 487,392

The movements in the allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables
during the financial year were as follows ;

2013 2012

RM RM
At 1 April 321,979 262,174
Impairment loss recognised 233,455 91,264
Impairment loss reversed (151,481) (18,907)
Translation difference #17 (12,552)
At 31 March 404,770 321,979

The allowance account in respecl ol receivables 15 used 1o record impairment
losses. Unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is possible, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the receivable directly.

Financial puarantees

Risk management objeciives, policies and processes for managing the risk

The Company provides unsecured financial guaraniees o banks mn respect of
banking facilities pranted to certain subsidiaries. The Company monitors on an
ongoing basis the results of the subsidiaries and repayments made by the
subsidiaries.
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31. Financial instruments (continued)
314 Credit risk (continued)
Financial guarantees (continued)
Exposure to credit risk, credit guality and collateral
The maximum exposure o credit risk amounts to RM2.349.497 (31.3.2012:

RM35.345,700; 1.4.2011 : RM12,349995) representing the outstanding banking
facilitics of the subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.

As al the end of the reporting period, there was no indication thal any subsidiary
would default on repayment.

The financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial
recognition was not maternal.

Tnter company balances
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

The Company provides unsecured advances to subsidiaries. The Company
monitors the resulis of the related companies repularly,

Exposure to credit risk, credit guality and collareral

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure 1o credit risk is
represented by their carrying amounts in the stazement of financial position,

Impairment losses

As al the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that the advances o
subsidiaries are not recoverable. The Company does not specifically monitor the
ageing of the advances to the subsidiaries. Nevertheless, these advances are not
considered overduc and arc repayable on demand.

31.5 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group's cxposure to liquidity risk anses
principally from its vanous payables, loans and bormowings.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group and the Company maintain a level
of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's and the Company’s operations and to mitigate
any adverse effects of fluctuations in cash flows,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

31. Financial instruments (continued)
3.6 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates and interest rates will atfect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.

31.6.1 Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and
borrowings that are denominated in 2 currency other than the respective
functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this sk
are primarily U.5. Dollar (USD}, Eure (EUR), Pound Sterling (GBP), Hong
Kong Dollar (HKD) and Swedish Krona (SEK).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS iconrn)

31. Financial instruments (continued)
3.6  Market risk (continued)
361 Cuarrency risk (continued)
Currvency risk sensitiviry analvsis
A 10% strengthening of the RM against the following currencies at the end of
the reporting period would have increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remained constant and ignores any impact on forecast
sales and purchases. There is no impact to equity arising from exposure to

currency risk.
Praofit or loss

2013 2012
Group RM M
UsD 572,066 546,030
EUR (TO6,90H) {T?l'?ﬂ':}}
GHBP (1.073.381) (802,757
HED 185,362 226,957
SEK (4,3 ﬁﬂ'p_ (6,037)

A 10% weakening of RM and EURO against the above currencies at the end of
the reporting period would have had equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounis shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remained constant.

31.6.2 TInterest rate risk

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair
value due to changes in interest rates, The Group's varable rate borrowings are
exposed to a sk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates, Short
term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed Lo interest rate risk.

Risk managemeni objectives, palicies and processes for managing the risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future eash flows of a financial
instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risks that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes m market interest rates. The Group's mcome and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates, The Group’s interest-earming financial assets are mainly short
term in nature and are mostly placed in short term depos:ts.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

31. Financial instruments (continued)
31.6  Market risk (continued)
31.6.2 Interest rate risk (continued)

Exposure to inferest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant interest-bearing financial
instruments, based on carming amounts as at the end of the reporting period

was -
31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
RM RM RM
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 19,610,572 5,170,502 44,189,964
Financial liabilities (15,717,765) (16,561,900) (16,880,150}

3,892,807 (11,391,398) 27,309,814

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets 1,932,300 14,881,446 16,173,566
Financial liabilities (2,349,497) (6,714,101) (15,205,454
(417,197) 8,167,345 968,112

fa)  Fair value sensitivity analysiy for fived rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the Group does not
designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair value hedped
accounting model, Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the
reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

b} Cash flow sensitivity analvsis for variable rate instriments
A change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the end of the
reporting period would have increased/(decreased) pre-tax profit or loss by
the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular foreign currency rates, remained constant.

Profit or loss

100 bp 100 bp
K=t Kh000 RAT000
2013
Floating rate instruments (4) 4
2012
Floating rate instruments 82 (82)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

31. Financial instruments (continued)

31.7  Fair value of financial instroments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and
payables and short term bommowings approximate fair values duc to the
relatively short term nature of these financial instruments,

The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities, together with the
camying amounts shown in the statement of financial position, are as follows :

Carrying
amount Fair value
[R5 R RAT000
Group
31.3.2012
Finance lease liabilities 120 120
1.4.2011
Forward currency contracts
- Aszels H&T B&T
Finance lease liabilities 129 #3209

The following summarises the methods used in determining the fair value of
financial instruments reflected in the above table.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market
price, if available, If & hsted market pnce is not available, then fair value is
estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price
and the current forward price for the residual marturity of the contract using a
risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).

*  The fair value of these fxed interest financial instruments 15 determined by
discounting the relevant cash flows using current interest raltes for similar
financial instruments at the end of reporting date. Since the current interest rates
do not significantly differ from the intrinsic rate of these financial instruments,
the fair value of these financial instruments therefore, closely approximate its
carrying amounts at the end of reporting date.

31.7.1 Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows :




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conto)

31. Financial instruments (continued)

31.7  Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

31.7.1 Fair value hierarchy (continued)

o Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

* Level2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
obscrvable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c. as prices)
ar indirectly (1., denved from prices).

* Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data {unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM 000 RAMT000 RM 000 RM 000

Group

1.4.2011

Financial assets

Forward exchange

contracts - 66T - 66T

32. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so as o maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the
financial year.

33. Explanation of transition to MFRSs

As stated in Note 1(a), these are the first financial statements of the Group and of the
Company prepared in accordance with MFRSs.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2013, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the
financial vear ended 31 March 2012 and in the preparation of the opening MFRS
statements of financial position at 1 Aptil 2011 (the Group's date of transition to
MEFRSs).

In prepanng the opening consolidated statement of financial position at 1 Apnl 2011,
the Group has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in
accordance with previous FRSs. An explanation of how the transition from previous
FRSs to MFRSs has affected the Group’s financial position, is set out as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp)

33. Explanation of transition to MFRSs (continued)

13.2 Reconciliation of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2012

Group
Effect of
transition fo
Note FRSs MFHSs  MFHSs
RM EM BEM

Revenue 376,322 752 176,322,752
Cost of sales {168,545 296) (168,848,296)
Gross profit 107,474,456 107,474,456
Distribution costs (11,333,878) (11,333,878)
Administrative expenses (48,941 307) (48 941 397)
Oiher operating expenses (1,935,B37) (1,935,837
(Other operating income 3,680,661 3,680,661
Results from operating activities 44,944 005 48,944 005
Share of profits after tax of equity

accounted associate 2,900,466 BOHS4  £.981,320
Finanee costs (720,635) (720,635)
Profit before tax 57,123,836 57,204,690
Incorme ox expense (8,481,592) (,481,552)
Profit for the year 48,642 244 48,723,098
Other comprehensive income,

net of tax

Fareign exchange translation

differences from foreign

operalions {2,608,503) {2,608,503)
Shire of other comprehensive

income of equity accounted

associate 218,346 (602) 237,744
Total other comprehensive
expense for the vear (2,370,157} (2,370,759
Total comprehensive income
for the vear 46,272 087 46,352,339

33.3  Material adjustments to the statements of cash flows for 2012

There are no material differences berween the statement of cash flows
presented under MFRSs and the statement of cash flows presented under FRSs.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conro)

33. Explanation of transition to MFRSs (continued)

33.4 NMNotes to reconciliation

(a)

(b}

Property, plant and equipment - Deemed cost exemption - previous revaluation

LUnder FRSs, the Group had availed itself to the transitional provision when the
MASB first adopted TAS 16, Property. Plant and Equipment in 1998, Certain
freehold land and buildings were revalued in May 1994 and no later valuation has
been recorded for these property, plant and equipment (except in the case of
impairment adjustments based on valuation).

Upon transition to MFRSs, the Group elected to apply the optional exemption to
use that previous revaluation as deemed cost under MFRSs. The revaluation
reserve of RM4,236,589 at 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 was reclassified to
retained earnings.

The impact arising from the change is summarised as follows;

1.4.2011 31.3.2012
RM RM
Consolidated statement of financial position
Revaluation reserve (4,236,589) (4,236,589)
Adjustment to retained earnings 4,236,589 4,236,589

Foreign currency translation differences

Under FRSs, the Group recopnised foreign currency translation differences in
other comprehensive mncome and accumulated the amount in the translation
reserve in equity.

Upon transition to MFRSs, the Group has elected to deem all foreign currency
translation differences that arose prior to the date of transition in respect of all
foreign operations to be Nil at the date of transition.

1.4.2011 31.3.2012
RM RM
Consolidated statement of financial position
Translation reserve 5,186,268 5,186,268
Adjustment to retained earnings ~ (5,186,268) (5,186,268)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrn)

33. Explanation of transition to MFRSs (continued)
33.4 Notes to reconciliation (continued)
{c)  Transition to MFRS in an associate of the Group

In the previous vears, the financial statements of an associate of the Group, which
the Group equity accounted for, have been prepared in accordance with FRSs.
Upon transition [rom FRSs to MFRSs, the associate has adjusted amounts
reported previously in the financial statements prepared in accordance with
previous FRSs. The effect of the transition from previous FRSs to MFRSs of the
associate on the Group's financial statements is summarized as below :

1.4.2011 31.3.2012
RM RM

Consolidated statement of financial position
Investment in associate (2,128,696) (2,048 444)
Translation reserve - 602
Adjustment to retained earnings 2,1286%6 2,047,842
Consolidated statement of comprehensive

income
Share of profits after tax of equity accounted

associate - A0,858
Bhare of other comprehensive income of eguity

accounted associate - (602)
Adjustment to other comprehensive income . 80,252

(d) Retained earnings

The changes that affected the retained carmnings arc as follows:

1.4.2011 31.3.2012
RM RrM
Revaluation reserve (4,236,589) (4,236,589)
Translation reserve 5,186,268 5,186,268
Investment in associates 2,128,696 2,047 842
Decrease in retained earnings 3,078,375 2,997 521




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrp

34, Supplementary information on the breakdown of realised and
unrealised profits or losses

The breakdown of the retained eamings of the Group and of the Company as at
reporting date, into realised and unrealised profits, pursuant to paragraph 2.06 and 2.23
of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements, are as follows ;

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRM EM EM RM
Total retained camings :
- Realised 226,427,613 204329662 21257348 20,109,226
- Unrealised (10,251,632) (8,034,610} (292,391 (24,524)
216,175,981 196295052 20964957 20,084,702
Share of retained
eamnings of jointly
controlled entity
- realised 26,139,087 22,822,304 2 g
- unrealised 1,721,773 2,537,083 . i

244 036,841 221654439 20,964,957 20,084,702

Add : Consolidation
adjustments 10,089,361 15,492,580 - -

Total retained earnings
at 31 March 254,126,202 237,147,019 20,964 957 20,084,702

The determination of realised and unrealised profits is based on the Guidance of Special
Matter Mo, 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profit or Losses in the Context

af Discloswre Pursuwant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Reguirements,
issued by Malaysian Institute of Accountants on 20 December 2010,




STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION
169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 36 to 122 are
drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Finanecial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a
true and fair view of the hinancial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31
March 2013 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year
then ended.

In the opinion of the Directors, the information set out in Note 34 on Page 123 to the
financial statements has been compiled in accordance with the Guidance on Special
Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealived Profits or Losses in the
Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Reguirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, and presented based
on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of
the Directors :

Lim Soon Huoat

el g",_:
_i--_n_ﬁ_ Ll

Lim Soon Wah
Penang,

Date : 31 July 2013



STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO SECTION
169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

I, Goh Phaik Ngoh, the officer primanly responsible for the financial management of Asia File
Corporation Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out
on pages 36 to 123 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and 1 make this
solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same lo be true, and by virtue of the

provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960,

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed at Georgetown in the State of Penang
on 31 July 2013.

Goh Phaik Ngoh

Before me / b ——
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| | B
||
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF ASIA FILE CORPORATION BHD.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Asia File Corporation Bhd., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013 of the Group and of the Company, and
the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and
of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 36 o 122,

Directors ' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so
as to give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auvglitors” Responsibility

Chur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement,
including the assessment of nsks of material msstatement of the hnancmal satements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF ASIA FILE CORPORATION BHD. (conrn)

Cipinion

In our opimion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as of 31 March 2013 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1963 in Malaysia, we also report
the following

a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act o
be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as suditors have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

b} We have considered the accounts and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which
we have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Wote 6 @0 the hnancial statements.

¢) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been conzolidated with the
Company's financial statcments arc in form and content appropriate and proper for the
purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

d) The audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any gualification or
any adverse comment made under Scction 174(3) of the Act.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken
a5 a whole, The information set out in Note 34 on page 123 to the financial statements has
been compiled by the Company as required by the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements and is not required by the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards or
International Financial Reporting Standards. We have extended our audit procedures to report
on the process of compilation of such mformation. In our opinion, the information has been
properly compiled, in all material respects, in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter
Mo, 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requiremenis, issued by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF ASIA FILE CORPORATION BHD. (conrn

Other Matters

As stated in Note 1(a) to the financial statements, Asia File Corporation Bhd. adopted
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS"™) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) on 1 Apnl 2012 with a transition date of 1 April 2011. These standards
were apphied retrospectively by Directors to the comparative information in these financial
slatements, including the statements of hinancial position as al 31 March 2012 and | Apnl
2011, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
year ended 31 March 2012 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the
comparative information that is prepared in accordance with MFRS and IFRS, and hence it is
unaudited. Our responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 have, in these circumstances,
included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at 1
April 2012 do not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 31
March 2013 and financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with

Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

M _

KPMG Ooi Kok Seng
AF 0758 2432/05/15 (I
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Date : 31 July 2013

Penang
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SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS AS AT 29 JULY 2013

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL 1 RMS00, 00,000

ISSUED AND FULLY PAID UP CAPITAL ¢ RMI116,256,830 finclusive af 399,904 treasury shares)
CLASS OF SHARE . Omdinary shares of RM1 each fully paid

VOTING RIGHT ;O show of hinds — one vole for every shiareholder

Om a poll - one voie for every ordinary share beld

Breakdown of sharcholdings

Mo, of % of lssued
Size of Shareholdings Shareholders MNo. of Shares Share Capital
Less than 100 41 1372 0ol
100 = 1, 333 254,558 0219
L001 - 10,000 929 3,784,540 3.255
10,001 - 100,000 235 5,976,810 5141
100,061 -5,812.840 37 23,295 804 20.038
SR12,841 TO 116,256,830 2 §2,943,737 71.345
TOTAL 15T 116,256,830 100000




SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS AS AT 29 JULY 2013 (contp)

THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 29 JULY 2013

Yo of Issued
Nao  Mame Mo, of Shares Bhire Capital
1 PRESTIGE ELEGANCE (M) 50N 3HD 52,336,837 45018
- AMANAHEAY A TRUSTEES BERHAD 20 606,900 26327
SEIM AMANAH SAHAM BUMIPUTERA
3 LM SIEW LEE 2576600 2216
4 LOR SWEE YEOW 2573748 1214
5 LIM SOOM WAL 2470825 1,133
f HEBC MOMINEES [ASING) SDN BHD 2,304,720 1982
HSBC-F& FOR NTASLIAN DISCOVERY MASTER FUND
7 MALAYSLA NOMIMNEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAL 2,237 400 1.925
GREAT EASTERN LIFE ASSURANCE (RMALAYBLA) DERMAD (PAE 1)
£ CARTARAN NOMIMEES [ASIMG) 50N BAHD | ala,600 I.451
ELEH AND OO BOSTON FOR FIDELITY LOA-PRICED STOCK FUND (PRIN
ALLSEC SUH)
i KHOD SAW SIM 16175920 1.352
10 LIM 500N HUAT 29191 0, T
11 GOH PHATK NGOH A9 Q20 0,731
12 CHEAH 50K IN 714,720 0615
13 FOO NEAN CHOU 522,240 0,449
14 MALAYSIA NOMIMEES (TEMPATAM) SENDIRIAN BERHAL 4R7T 080 0419
GEEAT EASTERN LIFE ASSURANCE DMALAY BIA) BERHAD (PAR I)
15 OHHAW KUANG 318,620 0,274
14 BEH PHALXK HOOI 2R5 &80 0.24%
17 BEH PHAIR HOOL 254 400 0214
18 LUCY KEHOO | #2000 1, &y
19 CIMSEC NOMINEES ITEMPATAN) 50N BHD 184,000 0.158
ClriE FOK CHIAM ENG KUAMNG & CHIAM YOOMG WANG (PH)
20 WEE KEW SING 180,300 0.155
21 OH PHAIE WEE 156,500 0.135
22 HOMNG LEONG ASSURANCE BERHAD 155,700 0.134
AN BENEFICIAL CWMER (UNITLINEED GGF)
23 FELINA LEE 5IEW IM 152,320 0,131
24 LIM SIEW EAM 150,000 0125
25 HLIB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) 5D BHD 1 540,000 0.12%
HNG LEONG BANK HHD FOR TARN CHOMNG MENDG
26 CHEOMG YUEN Lad 147 400 0127
27 OMG SIEW SEE 140, 200 0
2% MAYBANEK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN]) 51N BHIX 136,600 by
FLEDGEDR SECURITTES ACCOLIST POR 51 TING UH
29  KEDAH PERLIS CHINESE SCH TEACHERS COOP 136,300 0117
THRIFT&LOAN 500 LTI
30 MAYBANE MOMINEES (TEMPATAN]} SDN BHD 131,200 0,113
PLEDCGEDR SECURITIES ACCOUNT FMORE ENIER SIMNCGH ASL INDER. SING]
104,790,221 90,136

N ++'s Fite Corsaration 3na131




SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS AS AT 29 JULY 2013 conro

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHNOLDERS
= As per Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 29 July 2013

Ordinary shares of RM1/= % of Issued

each Share Capltal
Dhrect Interest  Deemed Inferest ferohede frecasiory

Mame of Substantial Sharcholders shares)

1. Dwatin Khoo Saw Sim 1,617,520 52,336, 837" 46.570

2, Lim Soon Huat 929,191 53,336,837 45,976

3. Prestige Elegance (M) 5dn Bhd 32.336.,8317 - 45174

4. WTAsian Discovery Master Fund 6,811,500 . 5879

5. AmannhRaya Trustces Berhad - Skim Amannh 30,606,200 - 26418
Saham Bumipulra

* o Pieemed imperest via Prestige Elegance () Sdn Bhd pursuant so Section 64 of the Companies Ao, 1963

DMRECTORS" SHAREHOLDINGS

- As per Register of Diirectors” Sharcholdings as at 29 July 2013

T
of lssued M. of
Ordinary shares of RM1/= each Share Capltal unexercised
Direct Deemed Interest fexclude freamery ESOE options
Mame of Director Inberest shares)
The Company
Lirmn Soon Huat 929,191 54973427 48.251 §25,000
Murjannah Binti Ali - - - 40,0040
Lirn Saon Wah 2 439 K25 152,320 281 B, 000
Lam Voon Eean - - - -
Mg Chin Mam . . . .
Lim Spom Hee - - - -
{Alernate to Ng Chin Nam)

* o Ievemed inferest wis Prestige Elegance (M) Sdn Shd pursuont te Seciion 64 of the Companies Ao, 1965
inciusive interests af spowse and children

*  These shares are held in the name of spowse and are treated ax interest of the Director in accordance
and with Section I34712c) of the Companies Act, 1965,

Mete | By virlue of his deemed interest in the Company, Mr. Lim Soon Huat is deemed 1o have interest in the
shares of the subsidiaries fo the extent the Company has an interest.




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE 18 HEREBY GIVEMN that the Ninsteenth Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company
will be held at Merboh 1 Room, Hotel Equadorial, No. 1, Jalan Bukit Jambul, 11900 Penong on Monday,
30 September 2003 at 1000 am. for the followang purposes:

Agenda
As Ordinary Business:

| T receive the Audited Financial Statemnents for the yvear ended 31 March 2013
and the Repors of Directors and Auditors therson.

2. To re-elect the following Dhrectors who retire pursuant io Arscle 30 of the
Company's Articles of Association,
(a) Lim Scon Host Cirdznary Resolution |

{b) Nurjannah Binfi Ali Ordsmary Resolutson 2

3, To spprove s final single tier dividend of 12.5% for the vear ended 31 March Oindmary Resoluizon 3
20M3,

4. T approve Directors” Fees of RM242 00004 for the year ended 31 March 2013, Dindinary Resalition 4

L To re-appodint Messrs, KPMO a8 Awditors of the Comgany and 1o authorise the Dipdinary Resoluteom B
Dvirectors to fix their remunemtion.

As Special Business:
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions, with or without

A, Power to lssue shares pursuant to Section 132D, Companies Act, 1965 Oindinary Resoluison &

"THAT pursuant to Sectoon 1320 of the Companies Act, 1965 and subject to the
approval of the relevant authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered
to issue shares in the Company from fime to time snd upon such terms and
conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may deem it provided that the
pgpregate oumber of shares issued pursuant to this resolution does oot exceed
10%% of the total issued share capital of the Company for the time being and that
the Dhircctors be ond are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of
and quotatzon for the additonal shares so issued on the Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad ond that such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting commencing next after the date on which the approval
was given; or the expiration of (he period within which the next Anoual General
Meeting after that date is required by law io be held whichever is earlier; but any
approvol may be previously revoked or varied by the Company o general
I'HEtt‘iI'l.i,."

7. Proposed Renewul of Share Buy-hack Oinsaary Resalution T

“THAT subject to the compliance with all spplicable rules, regulations and
orders made pursaent to the Companies Act, 1965, provisions of the Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association and the requirements of the Bursa
Malaysia Securties Berhod {“Bursa Secunities) and any other approvals from all
refevant governmental andor regulatory authorities:

the Directors of the Company be and are hersby authorised to purchase its own




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING conrp)

Shores throwgh Burss Securities, subject to the fiollowing: -

a) The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be purchased and/or held
by the Company shall be ten por centum {10%:) of the issucd and paid-up
ordinary share capital of the Company for the time being (“Asia File Shares™);

b) The maximum fund to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of
purchasing Asia File Shares shall not exceed the retained profits and shase
premium account of the Company which stood at EM20.96 million and
RMIED million respectively as at 31 March 2013 based on the audited
BCCONTES,

¢} The authonty conferred by this Resolution will be effective immediately upon
the passing of this Resoluton and will expire at the conclugion of the next
Anmual General Meeting of the Company following the passing of this
Chdinary Resolution or the expiry of the period within which the next AGM is
required by law 1o be held (unless earlier revoked or vared by Ordinary
Resolution in & general meeting of sharebolders of the Company) but not so a8
0 prejudice the completion of o purchase by the Compeny or any person
before the aforeszid expiry date, in any eveol, in sccondance with the
provisions of the guidelines issued by the Bums Securitics or any other
relevant authoritics;

d) Upon completion of the purchase(s) of the Shares by the Company, the Shares
shall be dealt with in the following manner :-

1) o cancel the Shares so purchased; or

iij tooretain the Slaes o0 puschased in treasury for distribution as dividend
tor the shareholders and/or resell on the merket of the Bursa Secunines;
ar

i1} b retoin port of the Shares so purchased os treasury shares and cancel
thae resnainder,

The Dirsctors of the Company be and are hereby authorised o take afl such stepa

a5 ore pecessary of expedient to implement or o effect the purchase of Asia File
Shares."

& Continuation in office as an Independent Director Ordisary Resolutioo §
“THAT Puan MNusjannah Binti Ali be retained as Independent Director of the
Company, in occordance with the Malaysion Code on Corporate Governones
2012 aniil the conclusion of the next Anmeal General Meeting."

o Tio trangact any other business of which dwue notice shall have been given,

Ly



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (conrp)

DIVIDEND ANNOUNCEMENT

NOTICE 15 ALSO HERERY GIVEN that a depositor shall qualify for entitlement 1o the dividend only in
respect of:

{a) Shares transferred into the depositor’s securities sccount before 400 pom on 2 December 2013 in respect of
ordinasy transfers, and

{b) Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlernent basis acoording to the Rules
of the Bursa Muolaysia Securitics Berhad,

The dividends, if approved will be pawd on 24 December 2013 to depositors registered in the Records of
Depositors at the close of business on 2 Decermber 2013,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TAI ¥IT CHAN [MAICEA TO09143)
OMG TZE-EN (MAICSA TO26537)
Joint Company Secretaries

Fenang, 6 September 2013

Notes:

I, Appointment of proxy

a)

(b}

{cl

e}

(=]

i)

A Member may appeind up 1o 2 proxies o attend on the same occasion. A proxy may bul need not be
0 Member of the Company and o Member may appoint any person 10 be his proxy. If o Member
appoints 2 proxies, the appointments slall be ipvalid onless he specifies the proporions of his
holdings to be represented by each proxy,

Where a Member of the Company 15 an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry
(Central Depositories) Act 1991 ("SICDA™), it may appoint up to two (2) proxics in respoect of cach
secunities aceount it holds with orhinery shires of the Company standing to the credit of the sand
securities account.

Where a Member of the Company is an exempd suthorised nomines which hold ordinary shares in the
Compaty for multiple bepeficial pwner in one (1) securities accoant (Semnibog account'™), thege i8 o
limit to the number of proxies which the exempt suthorised nomines may appoint in respect of each
ortibus account i holds,

An exemgdl authorised nominee sefers to an avthosised mominee defined oader SICDA which is
exempied from complimnce with the provisions of subsection 25A(11 of SICTA.

The instrument appeinting o proxy shall be in woting under the hand of the appointor or his attomey
duly authorizsed in writing, or if the appointor is & corporatio, cither wnder Seal or under the hand of
an officer or attorney duly authonised,

For a proxy w be valid, the Proxy Form duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company at Suite 2-1. 2™ Floor, Menara Penang Garden, 424 Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050
Perang, Malavsia nol less than forty-gight (48) houss before the tme appoinied for bolding the
meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

For purpose of determining whe shall be entifed fo attend this mecting, the Company shall be
requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn. Bhd. to make available o the Company pursuant 1o
Ariicle 57(c) of the Articles of Association of the Compony and Paragraph 7.16(2) of the Main Market
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, a Record of Depositor (“RODX) as at 23
Beptember 2013 and only a Depositor whose name appears on such ROD shall be entitled 1o aftend
this meeting or appoitl proxy o attend and‘or vobe in hisTher behalf




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING conrp)

2. Explanatory Motes on Special Business
(2} Resolution 6: Power to ssue shares pursuant o Section 1321 Companies Act, 1965

The proposed Ordinary Resolution & s for the purpose of granting o renewed gencral mandate
("General Mandate™) and if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company. pursuont to Section
132D of the Companics Act, 1945 to issue and allot new shares in the Company from time o time
provided thal the aggregate number of shares issued pussuant 1o the General Mandate does not exceed
10% of the ssued and poid-up shore cepitnl of the Company for the time being. This General
Mandate, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, will expire at the next Annual
Creneral Mecting of the Company or the expiration of the period within which the pext Annual
General Meeling s regquired by law io be held or reveked'varied by resolulion passed by the
shareholders in general mesting whichever is the earlier.

As at the date of this Motice, no new shares in the Company wese ssued purseant to this mandate
pranted to the Directors at the last Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2012 and which
will lopse at the conclusion of this Mincteenth Anoual General Meeting,

This Gieneral Mandate will provide flexibility w the Company For any possible fund raising activities,
including but oot limited to further placing of shares, for purpose of funding further mvestment
projectis), working capital andior acquisitions.

by Resolution 7; Proposed Renewsl of Share Buy-back

The Cridinary Resolution No. 7, of passed, will aliow the Company to purchase its own shares, The
total number of shares puschased shall pot exceed [0%G of the issued and paid wp share capital of the
Company, This sutherity will, unless revoked or vaned by the Company in general mesting, expires
at the next Annual General Mecting of the Company.

(] Resplutlon 8: Contlouation in offlce as an Independent Director

The Ordinary Resolution Mo. 8, if possed, will allow Puan Nurjarmah Binti All to be retained and
comtinue acting as Independent Director w fulfill the requirements of Paragraph 3.04 of Bursa
Malayzia Secunties Berhad's Main Market Listing Requirements and in line with Recommendation
3.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012, Full details of the Board's justifications
and recommendation for the retention of Puan Nurjannah Binti Ali are set out under the Corporate
Governance Statement in the Company's 2003 Annual Report.

Statement Accompanying Notice of Annual General Meeting :
(Pursizant 1o Pnrgraph 8 27(2) of the Bursa Malnysia Secunties Berhnd Main Market Listing Requirements)

Mo individual is seoking clection as a Director at the fortheoming Nincteentlh Annual General Moesting of the
Company.




ASIA FILE CORPORATION BHIY, (3151921

DS Account Mo,
Mo, of Shares Hedd

LWe
{Fuil Mnme in Block Letiers)
af
{Address)
heing & memben'members of the above Company appaint
{Full Natw bn Block Letiers)
of
{Address)
or Guibing kim,
{Full Name in Block Letiers)
of
{ Address)

or fmiling him'er, the CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as my'our Proxy to vode for mefos and an mylowr hehall ag the
Ninsteenth Anpual Geoeral Mesting of the Company to be beld at Mersah | Rogm, Hotel Equsiorial, Mo, 1 Jalan Buki
Jaimdil, 11900 Penung on Manday, 30 September 2003 21 10000 wm. and al any adjoarnmenl thensof e the manner mdicated
below

Ondimary Resolation | 1|2 | 4 | 4 | & | & | 7 | 8
FOR

AGAINET

(Plenss indicate with an "X in the approprints gpace how youo wish your vode to be cast. [T mo specific direction as to voling
iz given, the prooy will vote or abstain sl his discretion. )

Sipmed s ... s ARy 0F Sepéemiber, 2013

Shpeaiure of Sharebolder Comenen Seal o be affixed here if
Notes: Sharchobder 1s 2 Corpomation
Appuintment of proxy

l. A Member may appainl up to 2 prosies bo atbend on the same cccasion. & proxy may bl ooed not be a Member of the Company and

a Member mey appoint any persan in be his proxy. [ 2 Member appoints 2 peoxies, the appointments stall be invalid unless he
sperifies the propormions. of &5 holdings o he repeesented by sach ooy,

1. Where & Member of the Cormpany is an authorised nomimes s defined under the Securities Industoy (Comiral Depositories) Act 1991
("AICOA™), it moy sppoint up o twa (23 proaces in mespeet of each securities account it holds with ordinery shares of the Company
saanding to the cradit of the snid securies accoant.

3. Whev a Macker of the Company is sn exempt suthonsed nemmes which hold onlivary shares in the Coompany for mulimie
beneficinl owser in one (1) seoomities account (Comnibus account”), there i no lmil to the number of pronies which the cxemps
authorised nomines omy appaint in respect of each ompes acoount 3 holds.

A exenpl authosised pocnine: relers 10w Brhomsad somines: defined under SMCTIA which 8 exempral from complimes with e
provisoms ol sibecstion 23500 of S1ICTA,

4.  The instrument appointng & proxy shall be @ writing under the Band of the appainter or his atiomey duly authorised in writing, or iF
the mppoinior is & corporation, either under Seel or under the kand of an officer or efiormey duly outhorised.

5 Fora peowy o he valsd, The Proay Farm duly comsleied mes be deposited & the Repistensl Office of the Cempasy 81 Sume 241, 2
Flour, Menara Penang Ganden, 424 Jehn Salien Akmad Skah, 10050 Penang, Maksysia nol bess (ban (oy-eight (48] bours befone the
time appoirted for hodding the meeting or et any adjournmens therood.

& For purpise of delerminmyg whis gl be enistled (o stiend this meetmg, the Compemy shall be neguesting: Bura Malsysis Deposilory
Edn. Bhd. to make mailable to the Company pumsuant o Arscle 5T{c) of tho Asticles of Association of tho Company and Paregrepd
TAG(2) of the Mein Market Listing Reguarements of Hursa Malaysia Secartties Berhad, o Record of Depositors (RODO7) as at 23
Beprember 20173 ezd anly o Depsitnr whose nime appears on sach RO shall B enticled 0 aftend this mesting 4r apgsaint prnxy o
aiftend amdiod wole b hieTer hedal!
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The Secretary
Asia File Corporation Bhd
Suvite 2-1, 2nd Floar,

Menara Penang Garden,

42 A, |alan Sultan Ahmad Shah,

10050 Penang.
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